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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”)

OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)
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GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau San
Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
of the Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive; (2) there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
in this report misleading.
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Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as the leading
beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China over the past years through the introduction of a
series of innovative health and beauty treatment and products as
well as the provision of the most professional and superior beauty
and slimming solution to our customers. The Group was listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8200) in November 2003 and is the
first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong Kong.

The Group has nine beauty and slimming centres with three in
Hong Kong and six in Mainland China including two in Beijing,
two in Shanghai, one in Shenzhen and one in Hangzhou. All these
centers provide unique all-rounded personalized beauty and
slimming services, medical cosmetological treatments, anti-aging
treatment programs, etc.. Combining the effective treatments and
comprehensive follow up, all programmes enable customers to
achieve their desired skin quality, weight and body shape in the
healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for
its outstanding products and services and received numerous
accolades during the years of which included “Body Specialist”,
“Best Label Award — Slimming” by Marie Claire Magazine, “Yahoo!
Emotive Brand Award—Beauty and Fitness Centre Category” by
YAHOQO! many times and honor to be the “Caring Company” for
five consecutive years.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in 2005 who distributes
P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai and cosmetic and skin
care products with famous brands like SK-Il and Olay in the eastern
and western part of Mainland China. With years of development,
the distribution network is well developed and with the additions of
international famous brands, the growth of turnover as well as the
number of distribution points is impressive.
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In June 2010, the Group appointed a consultant to develop the
Group’s franchise co-operation business in Mainland China.

With the existing beauty and slimming business, product
distribution business and the newly franchise co-operation
business, the Group is well-equipped to provide the best-in-class
services to our customers.
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Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue and net
income

Selling and distribution
costs

General and administrative

expenses

Profit/(loss) from
operations

Finance costs

Share of (losses)/profits of
jointly controlled entities

Profit/(loss) before
taxation

Income tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year

Non-current assets
Current assets

Current liabilities

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Equity attributable

to owners of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—B-—F —E——fF —E-TF —EThEF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET FHET FHET
1,039,785 627,537 470,725 437,916 446,821
(861,630) (536,634) (389,006) (359,450) (344,809)
178,155 90,903 81,719 78,466 102,012
6,787 1,180 2,171 1,237 4,727
(79,062) (67,066) (61,211) (63,081) (63,491)
(69,429) (68,727) (50,957) (45,186) (39,115)
36,451 (43,710) (28,278) (28,564) 4,133
(2,008) (1,337) (1,248) (1,579) (941)
(76) (483) 2,858 (3,277) -
34,367 (45,530) (26,668) (33,420) 3,192
(7,847) (2,503) (2,154) (1,039) (1,353)
26,520 (48,033) (28,822) (34,459) 1,839
28,290 33,809 27,019 29,364 22,987
255,492 193,553 127,223 117,669 144,496
(135,819) (92,829) (75,084) (88,484) (77,443)
119,673 100,724 52,139 29,185 67,053
(5,593) (23,127 (3,380) (3,563) (3,041)
142,370 111,406 75,778 54,986 86,999
118,988 91,774 55,765 31,108 58,141
23,382 19,632 20,013 23,878 28,858
142,370 111,406 75,778 54,986 86,999
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE/E#,&E

| am pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
March 2012 (the “Year Under Review”) to the shareholders of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) on behalf of the board of
directors (the “Board”).

| am pleased to report that with the devotions of the staff of the
Group, a profit of HK$26,520,000 was recorded for the Year
Under Review. Recovery of the global economy was stymied as
the European debt crisis continued to deteriorate and disseminate
during the Year Under Review. Coupled with weak consumer
and investor confidence and sluggish employment market, the
economic prospects of developed economies remained gloomy.
In contrast, emerging economies continued to show strong albeit
decelerated growth momentum. Mainland China continued to fuel
the economic growth in Asia. However, in an attempt to sustain
steady and fast economic growth, the central government has
taken a series of measures to restrain credit expansion and repress
inflation in view of an inflation rate that far exceeded expectation.
Rising resident income and improving living standards has
supported continuously increasing market demand for personal
care. Against a background of huge demand for quality beauty and
slimming, health services and personal care products, the Group
achieved outstanding performance during the Year Under Review,
with the turnover setting the historic record of over HK$1 Billion,
representing an increase of over HK$400,000,000 or 65% from
HK$627,537,000 of the same period last year. The above brilliant
results of the Group honored the dedication of all of the Group’s
employees and the long-standing strong support of its business
partners.
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The Group has consistently focused on the R&D and launch
of innovative and quality slimming and beauty services, with a
stress on tailoring different beauty service specially for Asian
ladies, including a number of which exclusively innovated by the
Group. Furthermore, the Group would stay abreast of the latest
technologies to regularly update and launch more treatment
programs to and provide more versatile beauty and slimming
options to our clients. In speculation of anti-aging leading the
mainstream development in the coming years, Sau San Tong
has launched a series of anti-aging treatments during the Year
Under review, which was complemented by proactive R&D of
new treatments and technologies, as well as nurturing of talents
in preparation of future developments. Our customer-oriented
services have also earned massive support from the public.

Over the years, Sau San Tong has successfully established
undeniable authority in the industry. Coveting the Group’s past
outstanding accomplishments, many pirated versions of Sau
San Tong have sprouted across the PRC in havoc under illegal
operation, given the rapid growth of the beauty and slimming
industry, low entry barrier of the industry and the lack of stringent
regulation in the Mainland. This has impacted the reputation and
normal development of the Group to a certain degree. In view
of this, the Group has created the new brand “ ik & & &
™~ in 2010 in an effort to fully expand our foothold in the beauty
and slimming industry in Mainland China with this new brand,
which would alert the market and consumers of the exclusive
proprietorship of the Sau San Tong brand on the one hand, while
on the other would open up opportunities for those aspired to
enter the beauty and slimming industry in the PRC to change their
lives and reach their dreams!
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FFE &

Building on the whole-hearted commitment of our team, we have
entered into over 130 franchise co-operation contracts in barely
one year. More than 40 franchise co-operate beauty and slimming
shops have commenced business in over 40 cities in the PRC
during Year Under Review, whereas the remaining franchise co-
operate beauty and slimming shops would commence business
successively. By then, these franchise co-operate beauty and
slimming shops would orchestrate a symphony of the Sau San
Tong across the nation. Despite the relatively little experience in
the industry of some franchise co-operators, they have achieved
satisfactory performance at the beginning of their business after
the Group’s pre-operation training and guidance. This has not
only significantly boosted their confidence but also proved the
success of the franchise co-operation system of Sau San Tong.
During the Year Under Review, the franchise co-operation business
has recorded a turnover of over HK$50,000,000 and a profit
contribution of HK$10,000,000.

During the Year Under Review, turnover of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$1,039,785,000, representing an increase
of 65% as compared to approximately HK$627,537,000 of the
same period last year. Such strong growth was mainly attributable
to the remarkable increase in the product distribution business
in Mainland China. During the Year Under Review, the Group
celebrated a substantial turnaround, marking a substantial
improvement from loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$46,098,000 of the same period last year to
profits attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$24,126,000, or a stunning upturn of over HK$70,000,000.
Apart from growing turnover and pleasant performance for all major
segments, the impressive rebound in profits was attributable to the
endeavors of the Group’s entire staff in consistently implementing
the notion of new resources tapping and cost cutting, which has
resulted in effective control of growth in costs under escalating
sales. General and administrative expenses for the year were
approximately HK$69,429,000, comparable to HK$68,727,000 of
the same period last year.

KBEEE—FZHRHE 2REBENZ2BER
A BEFBB130MEERE - HREH40
ZHENBEEHBIERNAELBEFENRE &
MERE40Z [T - ERNB S ERgS
BN EEERE IR EEENR  2REBMSLENR
BHENTEL - REDLNDMBESIEIREDTE
BITENKERRR  BEIBASEN— R
ATEASE I IR E - IR ETAE BEEMN
BREE - RRBFAMMIBEO RIS EESE
HINEAERZHK - RAEEFR - MR
B EEKE5181B 50,000,000 BT L %5 - &
A& BRIE 10,000,000 7 7T °

RABBFEAN AEBZ2EEBED
#1,039,785,0007% L & £ F B B 4
627,537,000 EF+65% - EHFABEB =
ERPREAERSEEBHBEEERR - RA
EEFE AEEEEBEAR  AEXFREAR
BIEA AL 51840 5 46,008,000 7T + K@
EAERARGEE AEAEEFL 24,126,000 7
7T+ fZFH8iB 70,000,000 7T © B A8 I 38
BRTEALEBN EANUREEBEE DI
BREKEZHN  TERAEEZEETIER/
HITFRRERAEERS  HHEERANE
RTDEEB LKA ZIERIBE - AFEH
— R RITH RS 4/569,429,000 8 T + HEF
A HA%) 68,727,000 78 TTARAD ©

Annual Report 2011/12 £EH%



Building on the Group’s dedication to the beauty industry and
commitment to its customers, the “Sau San Tong” brand was
successfully established in Hong Kong and the PRC and its
services and treatment programs have gained leading position in
the beauty and slimming sector, boasting attested performance
and recommendation and recognition by the industry. During
the Year Under Review, the Group was honored by a number of
awards, including: “Successful Hong Kong Brands in Shanghai”
awarded by Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce in China, “China
Prime Award” jointly presented by Economy, China Business
Times, China Association of Economic Newspapers and Journals
and the China Alliance for Innovative Economic Development in
Beijing, as well as “Yahoo! Emotive Brand Award — Beauty and
Fitness Centre Category” accredited by YAHOO! for the fifth time
and the third consecutive years.

As a member of its community, Sau San Tong spares no effort
in contributing to society. We have been named a “Caring
Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Services for the
fifth consecutive years in recognition of our efforts. Moreover,
Sau San Tong has also actively participated in the “School-
Company Partnership Program” organized by Young Entrepreneurs
Development Council, and was appointed as an “Accredited
Training Organisation” to provide on-the-job training under the
Beauty and Hair Dressing Traineeship Scheme by the Vocational
Training Council during the year, testifying the Group’s contribution
to the community and its determination in giving back to society.
These awards and recognitions would all help to enhance the
corporate image of the Group in both Hong Kong and Mainland
China.
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HAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FFEHE

Looking ahead, the Group foresees continued ebbs and flows
in the global economy prospects. Recovery of US economy will
remain on a sluggish track, whereas the European debt crisis is
unlikely to be resolved in the short term as uncertainties continue
to loiter. With a shift in the economy growth forces in China from
export and investment to domestic demand, coupled with the relief
of inflation pressure previously built up by inflation-suppressive
measures promulgated by the Government, the Group will find itself
in an amicable operating environment. The Group will continue to
commit to exploring the immense potential of the Mainland China
market, reinforce its penetration into the franchise co-operation
business and product distribution market in the PRC, step up its
R&D efforts and participation in the e-Commerce market, with an
objective of extending more personalized services to our valued
customers. At the same time, the Group will also closely monitor
short-term uncertainties both domestic and overseas, and adjust
its strategies and operating models as appropriate.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, customers, staff and business partners for
their value contribution and strong support to the Group under a
year of changes. With our persistent efforts, | am confident that
the Group will sustain stable growth in the future and achieve
rewarding return for all shareholders.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 June 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

During the year ended 31 March 2012 (the “Year Under Review”),
global markets suffered from weak U.S. economic growth,
Europe’s ongoing debt crisis and the Japanese earthquake. In the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Central Government
imposed a series of economic measures to cool the overheating
economy and tame inflation. Equity markets all over the world
performed poorly during the Year Under Review. Despite the
uncertain global market, the Group’s wide variety mix of business
and clientele enabled us to steer through the volatility and deliver a
solid performance in the Year Under Review.

For the Year Under Review, the Group’s turnover amounted to
approximately HK$1,039,785,000, representing an increase of 65%
from approximately HK$627,537,000 in last year. Such increase
was mainly due to the remarkable growth in the distribution sales
of our Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. (“Dong Fang”).
Turnover from Dong Fang increased by 56% to approximately
HK$870,007,000 during the Year Under Review, (2011:
approximately HK$556,302,000).

Notwithstanding the challenging market conditions encountered
during the year, all our beauty, slimming and spa centres in both
Hong Kong and in the PRC have strong performances in the year.
During the Year Under Review, the turnover generated from all
our beauty, slimming and spa centres amounted to approximately
HK$108,386,000 (2011: approximately HK$64,621,000),
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representing an inspiring increase of 67% as compared to that of
last year. During the Year Under Review, the new franchise co-
operation business contributed HK$58,414,000 turnover to the
Group (2011: HK$3,351,000).

During the Year Under Review, the Group recorded an increase of
approximately HK$87,252,000 in gross profit. The Group turned
from a loss of approximately HK$48,033,000 (loss attributable to
owners of the Company: HK$46,098,000) in last year to a profit
of approximately HK$26,520,000 (profit attributable to owners
of the Company: HK$24,126,000). The sharp turnaround is not
only benefits from the improved performances of all the business
segments, but also contributed from the tight control over all the
operating costs, and reducing these wherever possible. During
the Year Under Review, the administrative expenses amount to
HK$69,429,000 (2011: approximately HK$68,727,000). During
the year, the Group granted 5,880,000 share options to eligible
participants, share option expenses of HK$1,948,000 are incurred.
Notwithstanding of the significant increase in turnover, the
administrative expenses are still comparable to that of last year.

By refreshing change and diversification of business, Sau San Tong
is continued to be the leader of the industry providing the most
quality and professional services to its clients.
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Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centres

In Hong Kong, with the uplifting lifestyle of females, beauty,
slimming and anti-aging have gradually turned from luxury to
become the daily necessities. With the increasing stress and
pace of life, the Group understands that clients are requesting
efficient and effective, relaxing and revitalizing beauty and slimming
services. In response to these high demands, Sau San Tong
introduces many innovative beauty and slimming, as well as anti-
aging treatments, among of these, “Perfect Body Contouring
Combination System” is one of our highlights. It uses ultrasound
waves to generate cavitations to emulsifying fat and then removing
them from our bodies naturally through urine and lymphatic system.
Besides, Sau San Tong also brings “Bubble O, OxySpace” from

Europe to our prestige clients, Bubble

O, OxySpace provides purified
the effectiveness of various kinds mm*

oxygenated environment to increase

of beauty and slimming treatments, —*===Timimiamias

and at the same time, our clients

can breathe 0% polluted air and to enjoy deep relax. Sau San
Tong devoted to allow our clients feel like reborn after receiving
our tailor-made and effective treatments. In addition to provide the
best in class services to our clients, the Group also invests more
and more resources to the research and development. Sau San
Tong’s mission is bring out the most beautiful side of each of our
clients.
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China’s vast beauty and
slimming market is growing
extremely fast. As income
levels continue to rise and

leading to higher consumption

power, mainland female i

consumers’ demands for high-

end slimming and beauty

services is bound to increase

further. The Group entered L

into PRC market long time X

ago, we built up our prestige 5‘“5"‘";"?

brand, opened deluxe beauty, ——
- e —

slimming and spa centres in
major cities and developed
the strong distribution sales
network. All these moves proven our long-term vision and strategy
are on the right track. The Group keeps on seeking opportunities
to open new beauty, slimming and spa centres in potential cities in
the PRC and the distribution of beauty products in order to capture
the untapped market.

Management Consultation Services

Being the leading beauty and slimming services provider, the
Group has accumulated a wealth of experience in the management
and operation of beauty, slimming and spa centres as well as
high caliber professionals from the industry. In order to capitalize
its existing resources, the Group has embarked the provision
of management consultation services for the setting up beauty,
slimming and spa centres. The Group believes that, with a lack of
expertise in the PRC beauty and slimming market, a high demand
for this kind of consultancy services is expected.

Health and Beauty Products

The Group’s ability of introducing T
innovative and quality products has Y
been proven in the past and earned : _-,

a leading status in Hong Kong
market. The management believes
by leveraging on “Sau San Tong”
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brand name and the customer it
confidence built up over the
years, these health and beauty
products will be well received in
the market. With the introduction
of the Consultant, more than
100 points of sales in the PRC
have been located. Moreover,
with the opening of more and
more franchise co-operate beauty
and slimming shops in the PRC,
the Group is confident that the
products sales business line will

L

be another major stream of business of the Group.

Distribution Business in the PRC

Apart from provision of slimming and beauty services, another
major line of business is product distribution. Dong Fang is the

L

-«
L]

biggest distributor in East China Area
of P&G products, and we are the
sole distributor of SK-II, the world top
class skincare brand, in the Eastern
and Western China. This year is a
strong year of our product distribution
segment, the turnover achieved a
record high of HK$870,007,000
approximately. Aside from SK-Il, we
also distribute Olay and various P&G
personal care, cosmetic and skin care
products and also Gillette Men series.
Besides, Dong Fang is authorized
by P&G as the sole distributor to
distributes its world famous brands of
prestige fragrances, such as, Gucci,

Dolce & Gabbana, Hugo, BOSS, Anna Sui, Dunhill, MontBlanc,
ESCADA, etc. in the PRC (except for departmental store channel).
Looking forward, as the PRC market continues to boom showing
immense potential for high-end products, the management
anticipates the revenues generated from the distribution business

will experience new heights and in turn contribute to the Group
with stable and sizeable source of income.

Bl BEREREZSEREREAERGER
MIGAES - BT ERMSIBOREARN DR
100fESHERSN - EEBARMZ WP EMBES
EXRHRERE ARERELERBESR
B RARE SR —HERER °

Bl HER

RIBHBBRETRBEIIN EmOBEEBLR
FFEEBR RORBRERNERNM
BEHANDHEEtLRERTBERZESE BSK-IE
BRI BREHE - HMNERD
HAOTNAFERREE  HEEFRESK
#7870,007,000& L& %5 - HREE - v T
SK-Il + A 78 55 85 Olay K E At 4 [ #) P&G &
AERE e REEER TOHTISER
FIEm < FRUEZON RAOTEREBRKLEE
R HE T BB 414 & K fn b 8 35 Guceci ~ Dolce
& Gabbana * Hugo * BOSS * Anna Sui
Dunhill + MontBlanc f1ESCADA % + 7£ & B &)
EANFEEERENHEERER - RER
® o ARBETISHFEED  REESERER
BNEXR  EBRERBAYHEEBESE 2 Ka’
SRS E  HMAREEBREEEMX
FEARZ WABKIR -

Annual Report 2011/12 FEH%

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 85 Z#ZRERA A



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEsm kL o

Franchise Co-operation Business in the
PRC

Since when the Group tapped in the PRC
market in 2004, the Group was undoubtedly
believed that the PRC market is so vast and
full of opportunities. In order to grab the
market share and to build up the brand rapidly,
we believe that franchising co-operation model
should be the best way. A few years ago, the
Group attempted the franchise co-operation
business with internal available resources.
However, due to the lack of allocated
resources and expertise, the performance is
still thankless even after years of effort. We
learnt a precious lesson.

In June 2010, the Group reformed the business
model of franchise co-operation business,
with the passion and efforts of the Group, the
growing pace and the results of the business
segment is highly exciting. In barely 1 year
of time and up to 31 March 2012, more than
130 franchise co-operation contracts have

been signed and more than 40 franchise co-operate beauty and

slimming shops distributed in more
than 40 cities in PRC have been
opened. Such impressive results
showing the brand image of the
Group is highly reputed and the
Group’s vision is correct, and giving
the Group more confidence to
develop the franchise co-operation
business and to invest more
resources into it.

Outlook

Looking ahead, with the Eurozone
sovereign debt crisis still some way

from resolution, the slow recovery of United States, and coupled

with China announcing a slowdown for economic growth, the

general outlook remains uncertain. However, the Group has been

TE NS EEK

AEEE _ZTTEMFHEHRETS
B AEECREFEMSERAR
B ARER - ARBEBEMESE
Ty RIRERAS T 45 10 B8 I J2 3 dm 8 2 32
BRI - AEEERBFREAN
NEBREERETMBRAIERS - R
M- ARRRADEEREEE &
BEFBNRINEBDF - AEEFE
BORER T EEEER o

RZE—ZTFNA AEEREMEA
SIEEBNEERN  EEB LT
EBERARBAT  EBHHBHER
MRERE S ARE - REEZZT
——F=A=t+—HIENEE—F%
WA - B2EI BB 130HMESE
et - LR BHBBIORMBEEE
A B8 TR R B A 40 B N R A9 3k T B

RIEFE - HRALE SAKEEARE
DERIKERBREZERNIMBGIERE
ﬁ%o

3=]

REMK BT EEHEMERER X
REBEEESERE - LTRSS HRIEEE
BEERE - BRI RE - @0 - &
SE-HEEBRERSEEERS  UWRBH#

Annual Report 2011/12 £EH%



actively monitoring the operating
costs as well as focusing on the
maintenance of a healthy financial
position. Therefore, despite the
changes and challenges in the
business environment, we are still
cautiously optimistic about the
performance of the Group in the
coming year.

Sau San Tong foresees that
there is a trend of shifting to
high-quality, tailor-made and

caring personal services. In view of this, the Group will continue
to upgrade our professional service standards, to put more efforts
on treatments and products research and development, as well
as to strengthen the communications with our clients to fulfill their
individual and unique needs. Apart from these, we will also explore
new business channels to expand the Group’s business mix. We
will continue to pursue strategies that can deliver sustainable long
term growth.

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31
March 2012 were approximately
HK$110,028,000 compared to
approximately HK$76,386,000 as at
31 March 2011. The Group’s gearing
ratio of 10% (2011: 7%) was based
on the total of bank borrowings
of approximately HK$14,760,000
(2011: approximately HK$8,311,000)
and the net assets of the Group
of approximately HK$142,370,000
(2011: approximately
HK$111,406,000). As at 31 March
2012, the Group’s liability was approximately HK$141,412,000,
compared to approximately HK$115,956,000 as at 31 March 2011.
It includes account payables and other payables approximately
HK$59,933,000 (2011: approximately HK$49,847,000), mainly
for the daily operations of our subsidiary — Dong Fang, deferred
income approximately HK$27,956,000 (2011: approximately
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEsm kL o

HK$24,152,000) and bank borrowings approximately
HK$14,760,000 (2011: approximately HK$8,311,000), bank
borrowings is also for Dong Fang trading activities. Such liability
is intended to be financed by internal resources of the Group. The
liquidity ratio of the Group represented by a ratio of current assets
over current liabilities was 1.88:1 (2011: 2.08:1), reflecting the
adequacy of financial resources.

Convertible Notes and Unlisted Warrants

Pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between
the Company and Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and an ordinary
resolution passed at the EGM, the Company issued a convertible
note in the principal amount of HK$20,000,000 to Dr. Cheung Yuk
Shan, Shirley (“Subscription Convertible Note”) on 5 November
2010. The Subscription Convertible Note is with 2% interest
rate per annum and is due in 2 years from the date of issue and
convertible into ordinary shares at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.50 per conversion share, subject to adjustments. Up to the
date of this report, the Subscription Convertible Note has not yet
been converted.

Pursuant to the consultancy agreement entered into between the
Company and the consultant on 24 June 2010 (the “Consultancy
Agreement”), and an ordinary resolution passed at the EGM, upon
completing the requirements stated in the Consultancy Agreement,
the Company agrees to issue unlisted warrants to the consultant
for the financial years of 2011/12 and 2012/13. During the Year
Under Review, no unlisted warrants have been issued to the
consultant.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly so as to reduce the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s accounts receivable was
maintained at below 90 days. To manage liquidity risk, the Group
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments and
to ensure that the Group can meet its funding requirements. The
Group has no investments in derivatives, bonds or structured
financial products.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and payments
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, the
Groups considers that there was no significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$142,370,000 compared to approximately
HK$111,406,000 as at 31 March 2011. There are no charges on
the Group’s assets as at 31 March 2012.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2012 and 2011, the Group and the Company had no
material contingent liabilities.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had 480 employees (2011:
around 462 employees). During the year, the Group’s total
staff costs amounted to approximately HK$68,251,000 (2011:
approximately HK$59,686,000).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employee and are
in line with local market practices where the Group operates. In
addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other
fringe benefits including share option, provident fund and medical
benefits.

Share Option Scheme

The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company, under the terms and conditions stipulated therein,
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.
During the Year Under Review, the Company granted further
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5,880,000 share options under the share option scheme to
eligible participants, including business consultants and suppliers
to subscribe for shares in the Company. Together with the share
options issued during the year, there is an aggregate of 19,296,248
outstanding options to subscribe for 19,296,248 shares of the
Company pursuant to the share option scheme as at 31 March
2012.

Significant Investments and Acquisitions

There were no significant acquisitions and disposals of investments
by the Group during the Year Under Review.

Future Plan

Going forward, in addition to the continual improvement of the
operation performance of the existing beauty, slimming and spa
centres, the Group will invest more resources on franchise co-
operation business, beauty product distribution business, product
research and development and e-commerce business in order to
enrich and diversify our business, bringing long-term profits to our
shareholders.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley, aged 37, is the Chairman of
the Board, the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director
of the Company. She is also the chairman of the Company’s
nomination committee. Dr. Cheung founded the Group in 2000
and successfully developed it to a famous and reputable brand in
Greater China. Dr. Cheung has more than 15 years’ experience
in beauty and slimming industry. She holds a honorary doctorate
degree from Armstrong University, U.S.A. and an Executive Master
degree of Business Administration from Peking University. Dr.
Cheung is responsible for the overall stewardship of the Group
which includes directions and formulating strategies. With her
management style and innovative promotional strategies, she
achieved various accomplishments and leading the Group to a
new height. She also holds directorships in various subsidiaries of
the Company. Dr. Cheung is the younger sister of Mr. Cheung Ka
Heng, Frankie, an Executive Director of the Company.

Dr. Cheung is an Honorary President of the Federation of Beauty
Industry (H.K.) and she is appointed as a member of the Beauty
Industry Training Advisory Committee of Education Bureau —
Qualifications Framework in 2006. In the past, Dr. Cheung was
awarded as one of the “100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs
in China” by the “Women Entrepreneurs’ Association of China”.
She is also one of the few Hong Kong awardees and one of the
youngest awarded entrepreneurs. Subsequently, Dr. Cheung has
been awarded as one of the “World Outstanding Chinese”.

In respect of social charity, Dr. Cheung is appointed as an
Honorary Consultant of The Against Elderly Abuse of Hong Kong
in the year and Dr. Cheung founded the Shirley Cheung Charitable
Fund in years before. As a Chairman of the Fund, she leads the
team to serve and feedback to the community in every minute and
every moment.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE EERN s EEAERERE (/)S

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie, aged 39, is an Executive
Director. He is responsible for the business development
and administration of the Group. He is also a member of the
Company’s nomination committee. Mr. Cheung holds a master
degree in business administration from Americus University of the
United States. Prior to joining the Group in June 2002, he was
the director of Vicorp Credit Services Limited, a company which
provides credit information, commencing from September 1999.
Mr. Cheung was previously an executive director of Chevalier
Pacific Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Exchange. Mr. Cheung is the elder brother of Dr. Cheung Yuk
Shan, Shirley, the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer and an Executive Director of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin, aged 62, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is
responsible for giving advices to the board of Directors and
shareholders of the Company. He is also the chairman of the
Company’s audit committee, a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee and nomination committee. Mr. Hong is
a practicing solicitor and a notary public in Hong Kong. He has
been practicing as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong for
over 35 years and is the senior partner of Messrs Lau, Chan & Ko,
Solicitors. He holds a bachelor degree in science from University
of New South Wales. Mr. Hong is an independent non-executive
director of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Exchange. Mr. Hong was also
previously an independent non-executive director of Fulbond
Holdings Limited (already changed its name as “China New Energy
Power Group Limited”), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Exchange.

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing, aged 53, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is also the
chairman of the Company’s remuneration committee, a member of
the Company’s audit committee and nomination committee. Mr. Li
is the Vice Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers
of Hong Kong Limited since 1998 and appointed Member of the
Election Committee for the Performing Arts sub-sector of the
Legislative Council Election. Mr. Li is the founder and chairman of
Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Exchange.
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Ms. HUI Yat Lam, aged 38, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in March 2008. She is also a
member of the Company’s audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee. Ms. Hui is an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Ms. Hui has over 17 years of experience in
professional auditing, accounting and financial management.

Senior Management

Mr. TSE Ching Leung, aged 39, is the Financial Controller,
Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr.
Tse is responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial
management and company secretarial functions of the Group. He
is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tse joined the Group in February 2008 and has
accumulated over 17 years of accounting and auditing experience.
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Introduction

The Company puts strong emphasis on the superiority, steadiness
and rationality of corporate governance. Subject to the deviations
as disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with
the code provisions Appendix 15: “The Code on Corporate
Governance Practices” (the “Code”) of the GEM Listing Rules by
establishing a formal and transparent procedures to protect and
maximize the interests of shareholders during the year.

In view of the amendments to the Corporate Governance Code in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules which came into effect on 1
April, 2012, the Company already adopted the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee and published them on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company in March 2012 to comply with
the revised code provisions requirements.

Directors’ Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM listing rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
they all confirmed having complied with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors adopted by the Group.

Board of Directors and Board Meeting

The board of Directors (the “Board”) currently comprises five
directors, including two executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors. The Board is mainly accountable to the
shareholders. It is also in charge of the management, business
strategy, annual and interim results, risk management, major
acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions and other
major operational and financial aspects of the Group. Major
corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to the management include the preparation of annual and
interim accounts for board approval before publishing, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.
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A list of Directors and their roles and functions has been made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
in March 2012.

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the members of the
Board are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile”
of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive director has
sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his/her
duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board fulfilled the minimum requirement of appointing at least
three independent non-executive directors throughout the year. It
also met the requirement of having one independent non-executive
director with appropriate professional qualification or professional
accounting or financial management expertise throughout the year.

Each of the independent non-executive directors have entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term expiring on 31 July
2011, with the term being renewed for a further term of one year
commencing from 1 August 2011.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each independent non-executive directors and therefore still
considers them to be independent.

In accordance with articles of the Company, at every annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of all the Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) shall retire
from office by rotation. A retiring Director shall retain office until the
close of the meeting at which he retires and shall be eligible for re-
election thereat.

All director appointed by the Board to fill in a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Board has published procedures for Shareholders to propose
a person for election as a Director on the Company’s website in
March 2012 in compliance with the relevant GEM Listing Rules
amended effective on 1 April 2012.
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Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie, an Executive Director, is the elder
brother of Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, the Chairman of the
Board, the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of
the Company. Save as disclosed above, there is no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) among members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Such regular meetings will
normally involve the active participation, either in person or though
other electronic means of communication, of a majority of Directors
entitled to be present.

During the year, four board meetings were held to review the
financial and operating performance of the Group. The details of
the attendance rate of each director are as follows:
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W

Attendance at

Board meeting Attendance rate

Name of directors BEENR EEgHERY HiE=
Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley ok EHRHE L= 4/4 100%
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie REELAE 4/4 100%
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYkHTES

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin BERLE 3/4 75%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing FEHE A 3/4 75%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam HF—EX L 4/4 100%

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for
attending Board meetings. Meeting agendas and other relevant
information are provided to the Directors in advance of Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional matters
in the agenda for Board meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comment and records. Minutes of board meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and such minutes are open for
inspection within reasonable advance notice.

REFEEZAMPAMBEFTREHLEL RN -
REREEEERBTAARNERTHHLERL
HEREN  YAMEESEG  UEM
FRINAEFEEHRIEN -

EESEAREARME ZE R MRS - A
REESREFMAEERRLRIIDESE

—~n

Tj—o

BRLEERNANGERADTETHAE
EUHEREERRELE - EEENERT
BAARNERT  RELEAEMEBERTA
HEH -

Annual Report 2011/12 £EH%



Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley assumes the role of both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. While
serving as the chairman of the Group, Dr. Cheung leads the Board
and is responsible for the proceedings and workings of the Board.
The role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group
rests on the same individual which deviates from the Code of not
having a clear division of responsibilities.

The Board is of the view that it is in the best interests of the
Group to have Dr. Cheung, who is the founder of the Group with
vast and solid experience in the beauty sector, to perform the
dual role so that the Board can have the benefit of a Chairman
who is knowledgeable about the business of the Group and is
most capable to guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely
manner on pertinent issues. With Dr. Cheung being the Chief
Executive Officer, the Group can also benefit from having strong
connection and network in the beauty market.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with Rules 5.28 and 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Terms
of Reference of the Audit Committee approved by the Board are
available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: to independent review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control systems, to
ensure good communications among Directors and the Company’s
auditors, to recommend the appointment of external auditors on
an annual basis and approval of the audit fees, to assist the Board
in oversight of the independence, qualifications, performance and
compensation of the independent accountant, to review quarterly,
interim and annual results announcements as well as the financial
statements prior to their approval by the Board, to provide advice
on audit report, accounting policies and comments to all Directors.
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The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors including Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui Yat Lam. During
the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to assess the
effectiveness of internal control system, to review all draft annual,
quarterly and interim financial reports, and to know about external
auditors’ statutory audit plan. The attendance records of the audit
committee meetings are set out below:
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Attendance at
Audit Committee

Name of Audit EREEY meeting Attendance rate
Committee members REHE EREEGHERH HER
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin BEMLA 3/4 75%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing R E A 3/4 75%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam R 4/4 100%

The Group’s audited annual results for the year ended 31 March
2012 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of
the opinion that the preparation of such results complied with the
applicable accounting standards and requirements and that the
adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditor, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect on the Company. During the year, auditor’s
remuneration for audit services (inclusive of taxation services) is
HK$1,040,000. Save as disclosed above, no services such as due
diligence and other advisory services were provided during the
year.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
in accordance with the Code. The Terms of Reference of the
Remuneration Committee approved by the Board of Directors
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The main role and function include, but are not limited
to, the determination of the specific remuneration packages of
all Executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

Members of the Remuneration Committee include three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Hong Po Kui,
Martin and Ms. Hui Yat Lam.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting to consider
and approve (i) the remuneration of the Directors, (i) salary
adjustment of the management of the Group; and (i) range of
salary adjustment of employees of the Group. The attendance
record of the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out below:
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Attendance at
Remuneration

Name of Remuneration FHEES Committee meeting Attendance rate
Committee members REHA FMEESHERY HER
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing FEE S E 1/1 100%
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin BELAE 1/1 100%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam FF—EZ L 11 100%
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 29 March
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code.

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee approved by
the Board are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

Members of the Nomination Committee include two executive
directors, namely, Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee) and Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie and
three independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Hong Po
Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui Yat Lam.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include,
but are not limited to, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company. The Nomination
Committee selects and nominates candidates based on
whether they possess the skills and experience by the Group’s
development.

As the Nomination Committee was established in March 2012,
during the Year Under Review, no meeting was convened and held
by the Nomination Committee.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility of preparing the
financial statements of the Group and to ensure that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group. As
at 31 March 2012, the Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties or events which may have a significant impact on the
Company’s ability to operate as an on-going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on an on-going concern basis.

The responsibility of the auditor with respect to financial reporting
are set out in the Report of the Auditor in this annual report.
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Internal Control Systems

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure an effective and adequate internal
control system exists. The Company convened meeting periodically
to discuss financial, operational and risk management control. The
Directors consider that the Company has implemented a series
of procedures for safeguarding the Company’s assets against
unauthorised use or misappropriation, maintaining accounting
records properly and ensuring the reliability of financial information.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and transparent
communication with all shareholders. The Company has disclosed
all necessary information to the shareholders in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules and through various communication
channels, including annual and extraordinary general meetings,
annual and quarterly reports, press announcements and circulars
to update the shareholders on the Group’s business developments
and financial performance. Such information is also available on
the Company’s website: http://www.sausantong.com.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman Islands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares
have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 19 November 20083.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial
statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products and sale of health, beauty and
related products. The slimming centres, which are operated under
the “Sau San Tong” brand name, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012, and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date, are
set out in the financial statements on pages 47 to 144.

Transfer of Reserves

Profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$24,126,000
(2011: loss of HK$46,098,000) has been transferred to reserves.
Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 52.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: Nil).
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Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 4. The summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 13 to the financial statements on pages
93 to 94.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 27(c) to the financial statements on
pages 122 to 124.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman lIslands, share
premium and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders. As at 31 March 2012, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$53,964,000 (2011:
HK$55,155,000).

Segment Information

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2012 is set out in note 12 to the financial statements on pages 90
to 92.

Share Option Information

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the

movements in share options of the Company during the year are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements on pages 116 to 120.
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing
Ms. Hui Yat Lam

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui Yat Lam will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui
Yat Lam as at the date of this annual report and therefore still
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are
set out on pages 24 to 26.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
each has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing 4 November 2003 and will
continue thereafter for successive term of one year unless and until
terminate by not less than six months’ notice in writing served by
either party to the other provided that such notice period shall not
expire at any time during the first 12 calendar months of the term
of the appointment.

Each of these Executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary and
a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the
bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any financial year
of the Company may not exceed 10% of the audited consolidated
net profit of the Group (after taxation and non-controlling interests
but before extraordinary and exceptional items of the Group) in
respect of the financial year.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have been appointed
for a term expiring on 31 July 2011 with the term being renewed
for a further term of one year commencing from 1 August 2011.
Save for a total fee of approximately HK$130,000 for all of them
for the year ended 31 March 2012, the Independent Non-Executive
Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE€ 4%

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and E%ﬁigﬁﬁkﬁﬁéﬂﬁfﬁzgé
Short Positions in Shares EKE

As at 31 March 2012, the interests or short positions of the HR-FE——F=A=+—H ARBAEEKE
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their ~ ZITBABREZBZHEATRARFLH
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the — MRBOAE(ERRESFEHEGD([EFLHE
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within  1&H1 1D EEXV&#B) 2 B fn RABRA O ([t 1) &
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ~ #AEmEUXR - MAREREZ MBS EIIFE
(the “SFO”)) which are required to be notified to the Company and ~ XV&FHE 7 & 58 8 70 G iR € A& AN 2 &) M Bk 32 P
the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, (BEREBEES KBE G2 BRIHX - HER
including interests and/or short positions which they are deemed — AREFEERZER KL HAR) - HIREE:
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which will ~ MHIEEPIEB2GKFE - HBREEIFR
be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise LRI 5.46 £5.67 RAE AR A RE 2 FT
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 EWOT

to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company: RARBIRG 2158 -

Number of shares

ROEE
Approximate
percentage of
interest in the
Company'’s
issued share
capital
Corporate Personal RN
Name of directors interests interests Total ERITRA
EEpE AEER B AR By ERzHNEIHL
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 31,332,000 40,322,700 71,654,700 28.86%
ok EHHE L (Note 1)
(Krat 1)
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie — 4,828,000 4,828,000 1.94%
sRBELE
Note 1: BraE1 -
The 31,332,000 shares were held by Biochem Investments Limited (“Biochem”), % 31,332,000 i i {7 # Biochem Investments Limited

a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability. The (['Biochem)#4 + Biochem 75— [ i 5 /& B 22 Bf & 5
entire issued share capital of Biochem is wholly owned by Dr. Cheung Yuk iz 2 AIRAF » Biochem 2 2 #f B #ITRAHKR T
Shan, Shirley. MEL2EHSE -
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:
Share Option Scheme
The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from

share options granted to the Directors of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme, details of which are as follows:

RARBEBEBRN 2428

BRETE

ARE BB 2 SR 8 AR AR R g
AEIETARRERZBEE - HHBOT

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in
long position  the Company’s
in underlying issued
shares of the share capital
Subscription Company NG|
price per share RAAQF BRITRAE
Name of director Date of grant Exercisable period sRKRH HER G+ G Eo A
] BFEH GEd: REE HRZEY Bk
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 10 September 2004 10 September 2004 — HK$7.9226 323,124 0.13%
REMEL —TENFENATHE 3 November 2013 7.9226 BT (Note 2)
—ZTEFEAATEE (Note 2) (Hitz)
—ET-=Ft+-A=H (Hizt2)
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie 10 September 2004 10 September 2004 — HK$7.9226 323,124 0.13%
RREEE —“TENFEAATHE 3 November 2013 7.9226 BT (Note 2)
—ZTEEAATEE (Note 2) (Hitz)
—T-=£t+-A=H (Hizt2)
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie 2 March 2011 2 March 2011 — HK$0.66 2,000,000 0.81%
REERE —Z——%=AZH 1 March 2016 0.66 /7T
“E——4#=fZH%
—T-R"¥=H-H
Note 1: BiaE1 -
The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director in a physically MBERBMEKEMMES  FliESERESRIAEDE

settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.
Note 2:

As a result of the completions of capital reorganisation and rights issue of the
Company on 2 November 2010 and 3 December 2010, the number of share
options and the subscription prices have been adjusted in accordance with the
requirements of Rule 23.03(13) of the GEM Listing Rules and the supplementary
guidance issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 5 September
2005.

HERACTHETAZ TR -

Hiat2 -

HRARBZBASERFEEDFIN —E—2F+—A4
“BEE-E-FE+-_A=R%K  BEREEE KR

BEREAIZER RIS 23.03(13) & L& EE
FERARNR -_ZZTRFNARBEM 2 E 5o st
ZIREEHAR -

NG
= R
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the B EXFIEEEN RZE——F=A=+—
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective B ARAEF - TETHABXEZE 28
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests ZATBEARARSEEEEZE(EERLES
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated FHAEGEBIEXVED) 2k - BT MR
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register RIBEEAELMBEGEOIEEREREEZE
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise st - SAREEI R ETHARAIZE 5.46 £5.67
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the BT ARFESETR I 2 HEFEBEMNE
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as KRB REEZZBA - Kik -~ 2Rk H M
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are w=IOKE - MAME AR T RBEZFT -
required to be notified to the Company and the Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short FTERRARDZEZRAE
Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2012, so far was known to any Directors or chief RZE——F=A=+—8 ' AR AEME
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would EFZFETHAERA  THERZBEZLER
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, HIEIRPIEXVHBE2REIHEAETHE » X
or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5% WRAERIHEEESARARAIEBITRASY%
or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which were AL RBRERBEEFRBEGAE
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept under KR EFE 2R ELMINMERREH
Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company were as wmr

follows:
Long position in Shares: RIRD 21T~ -
Number of shareholding
HREE
Number
of share
options held
Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage Fr¥s
FTERR 54 4V Bt BRERE
Biochem Beneficial owner 31,332,000 12.62% —
EnlAA
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Beneficial owner 40,322,700 16.24% 323,124
oR R IE A+ EnEBA
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive of the
Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares” above,
has registered an interest or short position in the share capital,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
has any interest in a business which compete or might compete
with the business of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float in accordance
with the GEM listing rules.
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Events after the Reporting Period

Details of significant events occuring after the reporting period are
set out in note 33 to the financial statements on page 142.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 97.21% (2011: 98.13%) of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 94.34% (2011: 96.86%). Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 35.45% (2011: 32.50%) of the
total sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$292,000 (2011: HK$250,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Audit Committee

The Group has established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the
committee are set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in the
annual report. The audit committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2012.

ERPRER

REREREZERFTEHFRBHRE 14282
B SRR M FES3 o
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Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & #% Z{Eh 3R &

=
BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

R v &t i PR )
2nd Floor, 625 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong
HWIAERE625R2M

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 47 to 144, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

Chan Kwan Ho, Edmond
Practising certificate number P02092
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #R& &k

For the year ended 31 March 2012 &= —-Z—

—HE=A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net income

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses
Profit/(loss) from operations

Finance costs

Share of losses of jointly controlled entities &1k £ [F]32 4 & 52 &548

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Income tax expense
Profit/(loss) for the year
Attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) for the year

Earnings/(loss) per share
Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 55 to 144 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

E S
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H il ak

H WA H5R
—RRITHFX
RN, (BR)

BRBLADEF(BE])
PR B S
FRER,(BER)
BER
EN/NCIEZ 2SN
ESRdire 5

FRBEF(BE)

SREF,(F8R)
EANET

Note
HiaE

6(a)

10

11

7S

n
>
c

2012 2011
—E——fF —E=——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET
1,039,785 627,537
(861,630) (536,634)
178,155 90,903
276 137

6,511 1,043
(79,062) (67,066)
(69,429) (68,727)
36,451 (43,710)
(2,008) (1,337)
(76) (483)
34,367 (45,530)
(7,847) (2,503)
26,520 (48,033)
24,126 (46,098)
2,394 (1,935)
26,520 (48,033)
HK cents HK cents
Al B
9.72 (49.12)

FE5EF 144 B WA EGEATBRERZ

—&Bp e
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Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year:

Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries, net of nil tax

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

The notes on pages 55 to 144 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

2012 2011
—E-CF —F——F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
FRER,(BFE) 26,520 (48,033)
FREMBEKRE :
BMEFINT B A B 2 B IERE
FrEAZIERZ%
ERIE 2 F 58 2,496 2,794
EREEBE(EE)
4w 29,016 (45,239)
BEN
KRBHEE A 25,266 (44,858)
FEfE IR 3,750 (381)
EREEWE(FR)
i 29,016 (45,239)
EE5EF 144 B AN EGRATBREZ

—&kD °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #4&

At 31 March 2012 R =—ZE——F=F=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Bank loans

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges

Amount due to a director

Amounts due to jointly controlled
entities

Amounts due to related parties

Deferred income

Convertible notes

Current taxation

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Convertible notes
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

FRBEE

YE S Y g
]
REFHEHIE 2 #Eas

RBEE

FE
EWE%%
R ﬁ%&
ﬁ@f%
EWW@Aim
RekReFED

FEE
PITEH

AT 5508

HApENE ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%
N — B EEHR

P2t HTME%

‘;tl—z IE
PRI BA L 208
AU

R

& BB

RBEEFHE
EERBERRBEE
FRBEE

AR
EEHRARE

BEFHE

Note
HaF

13
14
16

17
18

18
19

20
21
21
22

16
19

23
24(a)

23
24(b)

S

pnRE (A

Ee =

SAU SAN TONG
2012 2011
—E—C—fF —ET——4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FH B,
23,001 28,450
250 250
5,039 5,109
28,290 33,809
12,795 14,556
90,732 70,580
32,134 22,507
9,803 9,524
110,028 76,386
255,492 193,553
14,760 8,311
33,628 30,568
26,305 19,279
273 478
3,590 2,996
6,463 6,507
27,956 24,152
20,168 —
2,676 538
135,819 92,829
119,673 100,724
147,963 134,533
— 19,142
5,593 3,985
5,593 23,127
142,370 111,406
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CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERRHE
Share capital &
Reserves ]

Total equity attributable to owners of ~ ZARATIHEHS AFE(REZ

the Company 4a%E
Non-controlling interests VAR
TOTAL EQUITY RSB

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 June 2012

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
REH
Director

EF

The notes on pages 55 to 144 form part of the consolidated
financial statements.

2012 2011

-5 -z~

Note HK$°000 HK$’000

G F#T FiETT
27

2,483 2,483

116,505 89,291

118,988 91,774

23,382 19,632

142,370 111,406

EEgRN T FRA-TABHERRE

SE

Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

REE
Director
EE=
FEE5EF 144 B MM EHREVBMEL

— &b ©
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION B #& AR 3%

At 31 March 2012 R =—ZE——F=F=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

Non-current asset
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director
Convertible notes

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Convertible notes

NET ASSETS
CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY
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Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

29 June 2012

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley

(S
Director

EF

The notes on pages 55 to 144 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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SAU SAN TONG
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
4 4
55,760 47,369
178 107
35,740 43,190
91,678 90,666
1,797 2,087
1,159 1,049
= 102
20,168 —
23,124 3,238
68,554 87,428
68,558 87,432
= 19,142
68,558 68,290
2,483 2,483
66,075 65,807
68,558 68,290
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Director
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At1 April 2010

Changes i equity for 2011:

Capital reduction

Transfer to set off
accumulated losses
upon capial reduction

[ssues of shares

Share Issue expenses

Equity-settled share-based
fransactions

Cancellation of share options

Issues of convertiole notes

Conversion of convertible
notes into shares

Appropriation to the PRC
statutory surplus reserve

Total comprehensive loss for
the year

At 31 March 2011

At 1 April 2011

Changes in equity for 2012:

Equity-setfled share-based
transactions

Cancellation of share options

Appropriation to the PRG
statutory surplus reserve

Total comprehensive income
for the year

At 31 March 2012

The notes on pages 55 to 144 form part of the consolidated
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financial statements.

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAARENEL
Share- The PRC
Capital based Convertible statutory Non-
reduction payment notes  surplus Ace- controlling
Share Share  Merger  reserve  Exchange  reserve  reseve  reseve  umulated interests Total
capital  premium  reseve  EAME  resenve RE  TRR  AEEE  losses Totd  HER ety
Bt BOEE  ARRE B ENER GREE  REER  ZREE  ZiMER at BE  REEE
Note HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO0D  AKSO00
i3 TEr TR TR TR TEn  TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TR Tt
59,513 90,626 (3.637) - 4293 3113 - 8 (9897 5576 20,013 75,118
7)) (59,215) - - 59215 - - - - - - - -
- - - [ - - - - 59215 - - -
27(c)fi 1,785 51,776 - - - - - - - 53,561 - 53,561
27(c)fi - (1,556) - - - - - - - (1,556) - (1,556)
- - - - - 79 - - - [l - 9
- - - - - (1,757) - - 1,757 - - -
23 - - - - - - 2,675 - - 2675 - 2675
23 400 19226 - - - - (1,360) - - 18,266 - 18,206
- - - - - - - 960 (%0) - - -
- - - - 1240 - - - (4609 (44859 (381 452%9)
2483 160072 (3637) - 5,533 9,337 1316 14 @s0m 9 19632 111406
Attributable to owners of the Company
KAREEARE
Share- The PRC
based  Convertible statutory Non-
payment notes surplus Ace- controlling
Share Share Merger  Exchange reserve reserve reserve  umulated interests Total
capital  premium  resene  resenve Rt AR fEER losses Total FER equity
Ba  RBRE  GHEE  EXEE  MREE  ZEBR  BMRE  ZiEE A BE  BheE
Note HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  AKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO000
mo mE W A AT P FET FET PR TRT ThRT T
2483 160,072 (3,637) 5533 9,337 1315 1,74 (85,03) 91,774 19,632 111,406
- - - - 1948 - - - 1948 - 1948
- - - - (489) - - 489 - - -
- - - - - 94 924 - - -
- - - 1,140 - - - U126 25,260 3750 20,016
2483 160,072 (3,637) 6,673 10,79 1315 2,668 (61,382) 118,988 23382 142,370
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2012 &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT 271)

Operating activities

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Adjustments for:
— Interest income
— Depreciation

— Equity-settled share-based payment

expenses

E-FT—

— Impairment losses on trade

receivables, other receivables and

deposits paid

— Write-off of other receivables
— Reversal of impairment loss on

trade receivables

— Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
property, plant and equipment

— Finance costs

— Share of losses of jointly controlled

entities

— Net foreign exchange loss

Operating profit/(loss) before
changes in working capital

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in trade receivables
Increase in prepayments, deposits and

other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due

from related parties

Increase in trade payables
Increase in other payables and accrued

charges

Increase in deferred income

Increase in amounts due to jointly

controlled entities

Increase in amounts due to related

parties

Cash generated from/(used in)

operations

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

Interest received

Net cash generated from/(used in)

operating activities
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Note
HteF

5
6(c)

6(b),6(c)
6(c)
6(c)
5

5
6(a)

BX

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT FHET
34,367 (45,530)
(246) (81)
9,226 8,835
1,948 7,921
9 8,342
197 228
(117) —
24 (42)
2,008 1,337
76 483
1,128 1,767
48,620 (16,740)
1,761 (7,248)
(20,044) (27,543)
(9,824) (10,230)
(693) 6,954
3,060 11,377
9,423 6,823
3,804 11,211
594 106
370 5,620
37,071 (19,670)
(4,332) (1,996)
246 81
32,985 (21,585)
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Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities

Proceeds from new bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Interest on bank loans paid

(Repayment to)/advance from a
director

Issues of shares, net of expenses

Proceeds from issue of convertible
notes, net of expenses

Capital element of finance lease rentals
paid

Interest element of finance lease
rentals paid

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 March

Major non-cash transactions:
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The proceeds on issue of convertibles notes to a director of
HK$20,000,000 during year ended 31 March 2011 (note 23) were
satisfied by setting off an equivalent amount of outstanding owing

by the Company to that director.

Certain additions to property, plant and equipment amounting to
HK$2,397,000 not yet settled at 31 March 2011 were paid during

year ended 31 March 2012.

The notes on pages 55 to 144 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

2012 2011
=4 —E——fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat FET TET
(5,755) (13,133)
88 161
(5,667) (12,972)
29,230 22,025
(23,140) (27,821)
(982) (740)
(205) 6,172
27 (c)(iii) - 52,005
- 19,500
- (791)
- (14)
4,903 70,336
32,221 35,779
76,386 39,553
1,421 1,054
110,028 76,386
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Company information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares have
been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 19 November 20083.

The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and 4th Floor, Sands Building,
17 Hankow Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
respectively.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
March 2012 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”), and the Group’s interests in
jointly controlled entities.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
and Accounting Guidelines issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & 3E8A4h -
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on these
consolidated financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 32.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that are presently exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & 3E8A4h -
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the owners
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
or loss for the year between non-controlling interests
and the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(h)) unless the investments
are classified as held for sale.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group
or Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the Group or Company
and one or more of the other parties share joint control
over the economic activity of the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x& Bf & R R MY &F m

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & 3E8A4h -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 2(e) and (h)).
Any acquisition-date excess over costs, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly controlled entities
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the jointly controlled entity, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2(h)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment
ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at

cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(h)(ii).
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

(9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

10.0% — 20.0%
10.0% — 33.3%
10.0% — 20.0%

Machinery

Furniture and fixtures

Office and computer
equipment

20.0% or over the
remaining terms of leases
(whichever is shorter)

20.0% — 30.0%

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the estimated
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(9)

(i)

(if)

(h)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities recognised using the equity
method (see note 2(d)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment as a whole with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 2(h)(i). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(h)

(i).
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

— For trade and other current receivables, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment; and

—  goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the

recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

(if)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & 3E8A4h -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

(ii)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

0

(k)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(h)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number
of shares that would be issued on conversion and the
value of the consideration that would be received at
that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible notes is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible notes
reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

o

(m)

(n)

Convertible notes (Continued)

If the note is converted, the convertible notes reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the
convertible notes reserve is released directly to
accumulated losses.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(q)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand and deposits with banks that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o)

(i)

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in The People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the government
in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute, based
on a certain percentage of payroll, to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as incurred except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories at the end of the reporting
period.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o)

(ii)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using the Black
Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payment reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share-based
payment reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(P)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(P)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

2 FESIHBE®#E)

(p)

Frg®t (&)

ERAREHRESBIREEHE
ENREZREEZERIFEZE
EEN - RARZHYIRSEMK
ABLECBMZREAE - BELEH
HEENMABET TR

BRIEMAEE ZREERS 2R
REITRE - W ABAERRHE
AR AN AR B A RN
AECERIAE E 2 REE T AR
Do EAR D BEA R LA R HE
AR A [l

7 IR BB P EE A 2 FRONFT IS TR I e
RXNAMEKREZAERER -

EHIR AR LRER B AR IA N
HEH HExasH2IRTE8E
HEE - EHHBEEEMELERA
BERSGEARARAEEERE
BAAERHAEEREEHRE
BE YEFAEATHHEREZIS
TR BIKEE R AAE
MIEERIBRE -

— EHNMBEEENAE:ARQF
HAEEBIRFREEL
8 AEEREEZRAFSE
BfE

Annual Report 2011/12 FEH%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 E#ZRER AT



2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(P)

(@)

(i)

Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income within other
payables and accrued charges. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(qg)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in other payables
and accrued charges in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic and skin
care products and the sale of health, beauty and related
products is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the provision of beauty and slimming
services

Revenue from the provision of beauty and slimming
services is recognised in profit or loss in proportion
to the stage of completion of the service contract.
Revenue is also recognised in profit or loss in respect of
the deferred income upon expiry of the service contract.

Franchise fees income

Franchise fees income is recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transactions dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired
before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of
the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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ong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 s AN -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantive period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ily is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vil)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& Bf & R R MY &k ms

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 3B s£B5 - HABTTIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:

—  HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

—  Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 34).
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Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a
related party. As a result, the Group has re-assessed the
identification of related parties and concluded that the revised
definition does not have any material impact on the Group’s
related party disclosures in the current and previous periods.
HKAS 24 (revised 2009) also introduces modified disclosure
requirements for government-related entities. This does not
impact the Group because the Group is not a government-
related entity.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard introduce
a number of amendments to the disclosure requirements in
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures
about the Group’s financial instruments in note 28 have
been conformed to the amended disclosure requirements.
These amendments do not have any material impact on the
classification, recognition and measurements of the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
current and previous periods.
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Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B = #A5) -

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale
of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty and
slimming services and sale of health, beauty and related
products.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied
to customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax or
other sales taxes; service income from provision of beauty
and slimming services, net of discounts and franchise fees
income. The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&
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2012 2011
—E——F —T—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&r
Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care 9 4 8 &1k itk 2 &5

products Em 870,007 556,302
Provision of beauty and slimming services” 2#ER RBEMRG * 108,386 64,621
Franchise fees income ImBEEEEIA 12,208 2,779

Sale of health, beauty and related HERRE EAKRAEBER
products 49,184 3,835
1,039,785 627,537

Included in the revenue from provision of beauty and slimming
services was an amount of HK$45,427,000 (2011: HK$35,242,000)
arising from realisation of deferred income upon expiry of the
service contracts.
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Other revenue and net income

Other revenue

Interest income
Others

Other net income

Qver-provision of operating lease rentals

in respect of prior years

Subsidy income from the PRC government
Reversal of impairment loss on trade

receivables (note 18(b))
Net foreign exchange loss

Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Others
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2012 2011
—E——f& —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
246 81
30 56
276 137
5,024 —
1,279 951
117 —
(162) (325)
(24) 42
277 375
6,511 1,043
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & 3E8A4h -

6 Profit/(loss) before taxation

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived after charging:

(@)

Finance costs:

Interest on bank loans
Interest on convertible notes

Finance charges on obligations under

finance leases

(b) Staff costs:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses (note 26)

Other items:

Cost of inventories sold and services
provided*

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses for consultants and
suppliers (note 26)

Provision for impairment losses on
— trade receivables
— other receivables
— deposits paid

Write-off of other receivables

Operating lease rentals: minimum lease

payments

— property and display location
rentals

— other equipment

Cost of inventories sold and services provided includes
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2012 2011
—E—_—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
982 740
1,026 583
= 14
2,008 1,337
60,645 45,713
7,606 6,052
= 7,921
68,251 59,686
861,630 536,634
1,086 916
9,226 8,835
(Bt 26) 1,948 —
BB B
— RINE HFIE 9 150
— H b sRTE - 5,739
— Bt - 2,453
T8 B b e U 3R IE 197 228
wEREHS  SIEEN
e
— MEMBETRUE
e 19,275 20,924
— EEE 58 88

HK$1,809,000 (2011: HK$2,114,000) relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 6(b) for each of

these types of expenses.
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BEFERECREBREZKARIEERE
TITARARITE 21,809,008 (—F——
F 12,114,000 7L) * ZEENRESER
S o B ET A B Xk M 5 6(o) 8 37 i B8 2 A8

B -
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7 Income tax in the consolidated income 7 HZEAEWBRAZHERH

statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) HEWBRAZBIERE :
represents:
2012 2011
—B-—fF —E——%
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEr
Current tax - PRC Enterprise Income EHF%E — FEL%E
Tax FRBH
Provision for the year (note 24(a)) FNEAE (B 77 24(a)) 6,396 2,068
Over-provision in respect of prior years BAFEBERE — 4)
6,396 2,064
Deferred tax EAET IR
Origination and reversal of temporary EAREBEERERE
differences (note 24(b)(i) (H15E24(b)0) 1,451 439
Income tax expense FrigFim < 7,847 2,503
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made for REBMNEHME - AREAEEK
2012 (2011: HK$NIl) as the companies in the Group BRAMESEHEEBRRERT
either have sustained tax losses or no assessable AR MU ER T ——FIEEF
profits for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes. Taxation BRERBEBE ZE——F: T8
for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is charged at the JL) o BANINGB AR 2 BRIy iR
appropriate rates of taxation ruling in relevant tax BB RERRBITZEERE
jurisdictions. g o

Annual Report 2011/12 FEH%
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7 Income tax in the consolidated income 7

statement (Continued)

(o)

O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

ng Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 378 s A) -

BAETTEIR)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b)
accounting profit/(loss) at the applicable tax rates:

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Less: Share of losses of jointly controlled

entities

Notional tax on profit/(loss) before
taxation, calculated at the rates
applicable to profits in the tax
jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect on temporary differences not
recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Over-provision in respect of prior years

Others

Actual tax expense

BELADE A, (EBE)
JB O FER R E R
&8

BBATER, (B18) 2%
EWIE  RERANER
W5 R AR 2 BRI 2
MEE

AR S 2 MG &

BERMBAZ BT E

AERERERIRG
-

AERARPAREBEZ
DAL Z

PRABERERRIAER
2T E

BEFEBEEE

HAit

ERHIAEMX

S

pmaRHE A

EE=g=

SAU SAN TONG

mEWBERAZFAF/BE

FEHMXRRERRRGE S

sHER (BB 28k :

2012 2011
=& —E——fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
34,367 (45,530)
(76) (483)

34,443 (45,047)
9,393 (6,829)
1,889 5,402
(124) (276)

908 (1,066)

509 5,548
(4,992) (134)

- (4)

264 (138)
7,847 2,503

Annual Report 2011/12 £EH%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 45 Z#ZBRERAT



Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the disclosure

requirement of section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance is as follows:

Executive directors
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankle

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin

Ms. Hui Yat Lam

hires
e
FEEAL

Bufaf
g2
FRARE
FEHAE
FERL

8 EEM=

RBEFEBRFUEHIFE 161 2 KERTEM

EHBEBE 2 ESHE0T ¢
Salaries, allowances Retirement scheme Share-based
Directors’ fees and benefits in kind contributions payments Total
E=ng #e BURENNE R RfE 3

2012 211 2012 211 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 211
e N e T - A s e
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
71 T & AT 7L 7T FEn AT 7L AT
- - 2,661 2,587 12 12 - - 2673 2,599
- - 618 603 12 12 - 1,164 630 1,779
40 40 - - - - - - 40 40
30 Rl - - - - - - 30 Kl
60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
130 180 3,219 3,190 % 24 - 1,164 3,433 4508
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10

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2011: two) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in

note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the 8 BHIMZ(ZTE——F: =Z)AL 2
other four (2011: three) individuals are as follows: e @sEmT
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments HehEmiNe 5,038 2,046
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRETBIEFR 48 36
Share-based payments f& 15 15 5% - 640
5,086 2,722
The emoluments of the four (2011: three) individuals with the NE(ZE——F  ZZ)BEaH AT 2
highest emoluments are within the following bands: SERTHIEHE -
2012 2011
—E——fF —E=——fF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AE
HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 T 1% 1,000,000 % 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7T % 1,500,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T E 2,500,000 % 7T 1 —
Profit attributable to owners of the 10 &ZATEE A
Company FEAL %
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the KATEEAELSSEFEEERARD

Company includes a loss of approximately HK$1,680,000
(2011: HK$66,781,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4R&

Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 274 FEBASN » HIABTHIR)

REHAL

RERBHALS  —H(-F——%
ME)AES  HMEHE

S

mBsRmE ()

S

EE=g=

SAU SAN TONG

WERME

A TSR R BRI 2 E51E 49 1,680,000 7% 7T

—E——14F : 66,781,000 7T) ©

Annual Report 2011/12 £EH%
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11

12

Earnings/(loss) per share
(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
is based on the profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$24,126,000 (2011: loss
of HK$46,098,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of approximately 248,294,000 shares
(2011: 93,838,000 shares) in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended
31 March 2012 and 2011 is the same as the basic
earnings/(loss) per share as the assumed exercise of
the outstanding share options and convertible notes has
anti-dilutive effect.

Segment reporting

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Executive Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s financial information mainly from business
lines prospective. Accordingly, the Group’s operating
segments are:

(i) Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products
(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(i)  Franchise operations (including sale of health, beauty
and related products to franchised shops)

(iv) Sale of health, beauty and related products

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of reportable
segment results. This measurement basis excludes certain
other revenue, other net income, finance costs, share of
losses of jointly controlled entities and unallocated expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude certain property, plant and
equipment and other assets that are managed on a central
basis. Segment liabilities mainly exclude current income tax
liabilities, deferred tax liabilities and other liabilities that are
managed on a central basis.

11

12

BRER,(EE)

(a) SBREXEF (HE)

BREAREF(BR)  DHERAR
AHEA AL F4924,126,00078
TL(ZF——F : [51846,098,000
B RFRNBD T2 LB INE
T3 E 47 248,294,000 (=T ——
£ : 93,838,000 1% )5t & o

(b) SREBHERR(FHE)

FARMBR AR 1T {0 R 77 15 B AR 4 I m] #82
BWEEEEREEZE  WEHZEZ
T —_FR_FE——F=F=+—
AEtFEEzERESET,(EiE)
HEEREARF,(EE) R -

oEHRE

BEECDRENTESEHABAEHRR
MREZREEELENTE - MITEFE
ERXBRAERHNAREZHBEER -
At - AEBZEEDER -

() DHEEEEEREEER
(i) RHEDREERS

(i) MBEEEK(BEMMNBAIEEHE
HERE  ERREMBABRESR)

(v) SHERRE XBRERE®

HITESRA 2Ry BEEEETRKE
DRZRB - FEEETBREETEMEK
& EMBAORER  BEKAK - EHHE
ZHIEREBMADERX °

DREETBTERETYE  BEER
BREMETEEZEE - N BREEXE
TEEZHMEHRAE  BEEHBREER
HpEhEREZBE -
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ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B # 3Rk MiEE ms

sed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 & 3EBA4N » ¥ IAETLIIR) 'ﬂ& % e
> = F

SAU SAN TONG

12 Segment reporting (Continued) 12 7EHRE®)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) DEXE BEREE
Distribution sale of cosmetic ~ Provision of beauty and Sale of health, beauty and
and skin care products slimming services Franchise operations related products Total
FEHE(HRERER  RUZZREEER nES R HERR  XANERER aft

2012 201 2012 201 212 01 2012 201 2012 201
S%cE F-f ZRE F-fF ZRE F-F 2R CfF 2R R CRf
HKS'000  HK$000 ~ HKS000  HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HKS000 ~ HKS000  HKS000 — HKS000  HK$000
FEr  TEr | T TEr fEn TEr fEn TEn TEn TET

Reportable segment revenue from ~ SMSRF 2 A 2%

external customers bl 870,007 556,302 108,386 64,621 58,414 3,351 2,978 3263 1,039,785 627,537
Reportabe segmentresufs PEEDYET 1992 6231 18404 (3197 12561 (00 (667 (188 4220 [(5099)
Unallocated corporate expenses ~ AARATER (5,856) (17,695
Unallocated corporate other N

revenue Wi 17 80
Profit{loss) from operations eis/ (B8R %451 (43710)
Finance costs BENA (2008 (133
Share of losses of ointly ElEARRs 2R

controlled entiies 5 (76) (463)
Proft/loss) before taxation BRI/ (BB U/ (45,580
Income tax expense FEfAY (7.847) 2,509)
Profit{oss) for the year Enitl/ (B8) %520  (48,089)
Provision for mpaiment losses on ~ EEEE N

— trade recelvables —EREANE 9 150 - - - - - - 9 150

— deposits paid — ik - - - - - - - 209 - 209
Reversal of impaiment loss on EWB55EHE

trade receivables FERE 17 - - - - - - - 17 -
Write-off of ther recelvables BB - - 197 Rl - - - - 197 %0
Depreciation i3 1,644 2407 6,454 6,324 448 5 24 2 8,570 8811
Segment assets HEEE

— Property, plant and —0% KER

equipment B 4,608 5,402 13,992 19,087 1,683 1,213 17 4 20,300 25,693

— Interests in jointly controled ~ — RIS

entities BE iR - - 5,039 5109 - - - - 5,039 5,109

— Other assets —EfEE 127,869 96,572 56,706 31,490 29,919 13,852 841 1,329 215,335 143,243
Unallocated corporate assets FORLTEE 43,108 53317
Total asses BEGE 23,782 207362
Seqrent liabites B8R 6766 (05T @8d%T)  [osed (1263 (42 @ 60 (8% (@227
Unallocated comorate liabiites ~ FAEARE(E (22510) (23683
Total liabtes 8fuE 1419 (15956

Additions to segment non-curent  HEZEREIEE
assets e 763 2,780 1,125 8915 870 1,239 - - 2,758 12,934
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12 Segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical
locations are as follows:

The PRC
HE
2012 2011
—B-Zf —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Revenue from external ~ SMNFEPZ
customers Yz 972,621 587,093
Non-current assets ERBEE 18,197 21,033

12 DEHE#)

(b)

A Y

REENFEP 2 Wam R BBHIE
MEBEE AR IEMEME H 0
T~

Hong Kong Total

Bt Bt
2012 2011 2012 2011
—2--f % ZB--fF _T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
FEx FET FET FET
67,164 40,444 1,039,785 627,537
10,093 12,776 28,290 33,809

(c) Major customers

During the year ended 31 March 2012, only one
customer with whom transactions exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue. Revenue from distribution sale of
cosmetic and skin care products to this customer in the
PRC amounted to approximately HK$168,891,000.

No customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2011.

(c)

FREF

HE-_Z——F=fA=+—HILHF
B EE—R2BEPZRHHAER
Wam10% AL - MEEFREF S
HIEE b REEE @2 WA E
168,891,000/8 7T °

BE_T——F=A=+—HIF
ErYEEPEAEE R DA
10% oA E -
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OLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B &SRR Mz mS

therwise indicated) (Br B A AN - 1HABTIIR)

B5ZE
13 Property, plant and equipment 13 W% - HBERRE
The Group AEE
Office and Leasehold
Furniture computer improve-
and fixtures  equipment ments Motor
Machinery BRK WOER HE vehicles Total
L E BEEE EMRE VEST RE &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T TEL TRL FiET FET

Cost: KA

At 1 April 2010 RZE-EFNA—H 16,130 4,614 6,976 26,143 6,577 60,440
Exchange adjustments B 5 AR 168 92 148 703 343 1,454
Additions RE 2,063 18 360 10,062 3,027 15,530
Disposals HE - - (320) (10,748) (567) (11,635)
At 31 March 2011 W-_E——F=ZA=1-H 18,361 4,724 7,164 26,160 9,380 65,789
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FNA—H 18,361 4,724 7,164 26,160 9,380 65,789
Exchange adjustments R R 164 76 128 909 321 1,598
Additions NE 635 211 984 1,172 356 3,358
Disposals LE (849) (48) (393) - (688) (1,978)
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—F=A=1+—H 18,311 4,963 7,883 28,241 9,369 68,767

Annual Report 2011/12 £EH%
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The Group (continued)

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 April 2010

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2011

At 1 April 2011

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals
At 31 March 2012
Carrying amount:

At 31 March 2012

At 31 March 2011

RAHE

RZZ-ZFNA—-H
B

FREE

HERED

W-F——FZA=1—H

RZE-—%FNA—H
R

EREE

HEBED
RZE-ZF=A=1-H
FRE®E :
RZT-ZF=A=1-H
RZE——F=ZA=1—H

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

13 W% - MEERRE®)

AEE(E)
Furniture ~ Office and
and computer Leasehold
fixtures  equipment improve- Motor
Machinery BRR BAER ments vehicles Total
HE BELE EERE HENREE RE &t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
11,229 3,028 4,897 17,422 2,692 39,263
111 49 84 384 129 757
1,935 478 715 4,306 1,401 8,835
- - (308) (10,697) (511) (11,516)
13,275 3,550 5,388 11,415 3,71 37,339
13,275 3,550 5,388 11,415 3,711 37,339
104 49 79 705 130 1,067
1,715 439 878 4,583 1,611 9,226
(849) (43) (354) - (620) (1,866)
14,245 3,995 5,991 16,703 4,832 45,766
4,066 968 1,892 11,538 4,537 23,001
5,086 1,174 1,776 14,745 5,669 28,450
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ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B # 3Rk MiEE ms

sed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 2B L85 BB TTIIR)

s,
E5 =
SAU SAN TONG
14 Goodwill 14 HE
The Group
TEE
2012 2011
—EB——f —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost: %N
At 1 April and 31 March REA—BAEK=A=+—H 271 271
Accumulated impairment: Z5HREME -
At 1 April and 31 March RUA—BER=A=+—H 21 21
Carrying amount: REE :
At 31 March W=A=+—H 250 250
Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s R TYIRKITE 2(e) T 2 A EE 25T EUR
accounting policies as set out in note 2(e). N
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has RAEEARME  BEE RS EE=E
been allocated to three individual cash generating units R=-HMEBAREN I REELEM([IE
(CGUs) comprising three subsidiaries, each engaged in the TEERMN])  SWMBRARSRIRESHE
distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products, the HEAREBEER - REEAREBER
provision of beauty and slimming services and the provision BARRHERFHRRS - FFBE0T -
of management consultancy services, as follows:
Goodwill
(GRS
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care 7 #4 $5E (b Ak & B
products Em 37 37
Provision of beauty and slimming services IRHEER K4 ARTE 140 140
Provision of management consultancy RHEEEAT
services AR 7% 73 73
250 250

Annual Report 2011/12 FE#HE Mol
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14 Goodwill (continued)

15

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculations are:

2012 and 2011

— Gross margin 5% — 15%
— Discount rate 12%

Management determined the budgeted gross margin
based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect

specific risks.

Investments in and amounts due from/to
subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost

Less: impairment losses JB O REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B BB A B FRIE

R BIERE1R

Less: impairment losses

&A1 Y /B8 2 AR IR

Amounts due to subsidiaries

The amounts due from or to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

FEEMRAD - RARA

14 BHE )

15

ReEE BN AT E S REREAEER
BABE - WEEARARKRERE
EoEz AF M BREEL ZRER
278 -

EREBEMENEATAZEERRR

“BR-CHERZE-—F

— ERE
— B

5% — 15%
12%

EEERBBERRIEEMIZERZTE

HMEEREEMNEK - MEMRZMREXS
TR - A REREFE R

RTBLA R 2REREWR P

1% Bt I8 2 B RRIE
The Company
b N

2012 2011
—E——fF —=——fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
3,664 3,664
(3,660) (3,660)
4 4
184,223 175,832
(128,463) (128,463)
55,760 47,369
1,797 2,087

FEU S AT BB A R R R BT - %8
KBHBREER -
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %44 B & sk R Mz (AS

ong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 A5 + A TTHIR) 'ﬂﬁ % e,
g

SAU SAN TONG

15 Investments in and amounts due from/to 15 RHBATIZREREW B
subsidiaries (Continued) SEEPNG ERELE )
At 31 March 2012, the Company had direct or indirect RZE—Z—ZF=A=+—80  ARFEE
interests in the following subsidiaries, which are private S EERTHHBAR(AFLALTAR
limited companies or, if established/incorporated outside HAR BB AN, EMR - BIAS
Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as a BEBILALETRRERZ EBHE) %
Hong Kong private limited company. The class of shares held B - REBEHAIN - RO ERNR
is ordinary unless otherwise stated. The particulars of these LA - ZENBARNR_E—=—F=A
subsidiaries at 31 March 2012 are set out below: =T —BZFRET
Proportion of
effective ownership interest

Placeof  Particulars of issued EREERERLY
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ARER EXuE  CRORBRRARE EE BE  FEEE
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
REBRLREHMAL -
Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding

(35 1,000 RBMREE 1 7RI RERK
Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding

B 1REREE ETZRIA REBR
Smartime International Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of USS1 each 100% - Investment holding
EEERREERAR Bk 1REREE ZTZRIA REZR
Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding

Bk 100REHRAE1ZTLRIA REZR
Wise Fortune Holdings Corp. Hong Kong 10 shares of US1 each 100% - Investment holding

(3 10REREE1ZTLRA RERRK
Sau San Tong China Development Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding

; 10RERAE 1 ZTL R RERRK
Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Inactive
7 100 REREE Tkt grex

Victory Assets Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding

o 100REHRAE1ET2RIA REBR
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15

Investments in and amounts due from/to

subsidiaries (Continued)

Proportion of

effective ownership interest

15 RMBARIZREREW HE
SHE B A RIFRIE (#2)

Placeof  Particulars of issued EREERERLS
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ARER BENY  DRORBERAHE B BE  IZER
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands: (Continued)
REBRLEEHIAL - (8)
Concept de beauté Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% - Inactive
S 10REREE 1 FTLRA grex
L'institut Sau San tong de la recherche scientifique ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Inactive
de beauté (en France) a Limited 57 100 REREE 1 =T RN Emeg
Gold Platform Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
y 0REREE 1 ZT LR REBR
Brillant Concept Co. Ltd. Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each - 100%  Investment holding
B 1REREE 1 ET LR RERRK
Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each - 100%  Provision of management consultancy
B 100 REREE ZT2 RN senvice
RUEREARE
Sau San Tong (Shanghai] Limited (note (i) Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each - 50%  Investment holding
(Hitm) i 1000 RBRAE 1 X kb RERR
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Hangzhou) Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each - 51%  Investment holding
Limited Sy 100 EREE1ZTL R RERR
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Development Ltd. (note (i)  Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each - 50%  Inactive
Hizm) Ek 10REREE 1 ZTZRA grex
Sau San Tong (Beijing) Investments Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each - 100%  Investment holding
S 100RBREE 1 ZTLRA RERK
Machiko Enterprises Inc. Hong Kong 100 shares of US1 each - 100%  Investment holding
5 100RBREE 1 ZTLRA REBR
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Shenzhen) Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each - 51%  Investment holding
Limited 5} 100RERAE 1 ZTLRA REARR
Yield Soar Limited (note (i)} (42 i) Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each - 100%  Investment holding
g 1REREE 1 ETL R RERK
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HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # iR R Mi s (AS

ng dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 57 #EBASN + A TTHIR)
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SAU SAN TONG

15 Investments in and amounts due from/to 15 AMBARIZREREKR FE
subsidiaries (Continueq) M B~ B FRIE (&)
Proportion of
effective ownership interest
Placeof  Particulars of issued ERERERELS
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ARER BENY  DRORBERSHE EE BE  FEEE
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
RERRMAL -
Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Sale of health and beauty products and
BH2ERDA B 10,000 R ERAEE 1 B2 Ri investment holding
HERRRFAEMRREER
Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Inactive
EIEREARARLT Bk 100REBRAE 1 BT KA Irex
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim ~ Hong Kong 18,750 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
Institute Limited 7 18750 RERAE Bkt REZAREERK
EIEEEERREYR
RBRLERAR
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
Institute (TST) Limited o 10000k EREE 1 B Kb RUZRERRSE
BAEREXTREURRERL
(RDE)ERAT
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim -~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
Institute (Causeway Bay) Limited B 100REREE BT &H RUXAREERS
BIERRERRRIBRETL
(HE2)ERAT
Sau San Tong Management Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Provision of management consultancy
5 2EEERAT B 100REREE BT &R senvice
RUERHARS
SST Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Provision of advertising agency services
B REREERAA Bk 10,000 R BHRA & 1 87 Rl RUEEERERS
Moon Profit Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HKS1 each - 100%  Inactive
WARARAT Bh 1REREE BT RIA frex
Highlight International Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Inactive
SREREHERAR Bk 100REREE 1 BT LR grex
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim -~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HKS1 each - 100%  Inactive
Institute (Shatin) Limited B 100REHRAE 1 AT R gEex
EIEREXRREURRETL(VA)ERAT
Winic Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each - 100%  Investment holding
XNEBERDA 7 1REREE ATZRA REZR
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15 Investments in and amounts due from/to
subsidiaries (Continued)

15 RIB AR ZREREW &
3B B AR (%)

Proportion of
effective ownership interest
Placeof  Particulars of issued EREERERLS
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
AER BT ERORMRRAHE E# B IZEER
Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continued)
REBHMAL - ()
Winner Sight Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HKS1 each - 100%  Inactive
ERERAT B3 YREREETETLRA Eme%
Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100% - Inactive
Research Institute (HK) Limited (nots (i) B 1RERER AT R R
(B )
Incorporated in the PRC:
Reazmsy
LA-REBERERAA frotss () (Wit () The PRC  Registered capital of US$150,000 - 50%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
G AR 150,000% T REXAREERS
LERGALHEERAT The PRC  Registered capital of US$5,000,000 - 51%  Distribution sale of cosmetic and
t FHE75,000,000% 7 skin care products
PHHENHEERER
TERIRBE(HINERA The PRC  Registered capital of HK$3,500,000 - 51%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
i HE 73,500,000 7 RUEXARBERS
—ERREXE(NNERAA The PRC  Registered capital of HK$3,500,000 - 51%  Provision of beauty and simming services
hE & 73,500,000 87 RUEXARSERE
AREER (IR BRAT The PRC  Registered capital of HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
e HFE71,000,0007% 7 REXARSERE
IREEEEERNERLA The PRC  Registered capital of RMB500,000 - 100%  Inactive
e AR ARE500,0007 Ime%
EH2(LR)ARERFRERAT The PRC  Registered capital of RMBE,000,000 - 100%  Provision of management consultancy
TE HERARE6,000,0007T service and investment holding
REEELARE L ARR
HEBAZEXARAT The PRC  Registered capital of RMB500,000 - 100%  Provision of franchise services
il HERAR® 5000007 RENBAERTS
Note Hat
0} As the Group controls the board of directors of these entities, they 0] ARAEBEHZEEEZESS - ]I IZI
are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Group’s control REBNRKRE 2 TR ERKB R
over them. iR o
(i)  These subsidiaries were established by the Group in the year (i) ZEMBRARBAEEREEZE-_T—Z=F

ended 31 March 2012.

=R=+—HIEFEKIL -

fo] Annual Report 2011/12 FE#RS
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Interests in and amounts due from/to
jointly controlled entities

Share of net liabilities

FEIEREFE
& W SK R #22  EE R K

Amount due from a jointly controlled entity

Amounts due to jointly controlled entities &<+t [F 3% 4| B 42 5018
The amounts due from or to jointly controlled entities
are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

BB TSR

S

pmaRHE A

EE=g=

SAU SAN TONG

16%%@%%%%2%%&@%

S S HEEERE
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—g-=% T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(989) (919)
6,028 6,028
5,039 5,109
3,590 2,996

FEAT S U R 5 B R FUR R EE A
%/%\&%;EE/TA/H\E °

Details of jointly controlled entities at 31 March 2012 are as R-E——F=A=+—HzHEIEHE
follows: RIS
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ effective ownership interest
operations Particulars of issued ERERERRLA
Name of jointly controlled entity ~ iFMELY%%,/  and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
LEEHERZE £k BETRAERAGHE E# BE TEER
Wealthy Sound Limited Hong Kong/ 10,000 shares of HKS1 each - 50%  Investment holding
FEERAT Hong Kong
Bh/ER 10000 RBREE 1 BT KR REBR
BHESHER (4%) BRAA  ThePRG/The PRC  Registered capital of US$150,000 - 50%  Provision of beauty and simming services
hE/ HREA150,000%T REFRREERE

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 85 ZZRBER AR
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16

Interests in and amounts due from/to
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Summary financial information on jointly controlled entities —
Group’s effective interest:

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net liabilities
Income
Expenses

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

FREEE
MBEE
mBAIE
FREBEE

BEFE
WA

Xz
PRISTHR X

FREE

16 REARZGIER 2 EDRER

SRS E R 2 FEE)

KREHER — AREZER S

BEREE -
The Group
AEE

2012 2011
—B-=fF —E——%
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,554 2,499
6,307 6,950
(7,944) (9,771)
(906) (597)
(989) (919)

8,748 6,601
(8,535) (7,069)
(289) (15)

(76) (483)

Annual Report 2011/12 FEH%
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SAU SAN TONG

17 Inventories 17 78
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position FEMBKARAZFERE
comprise:
The Group
TEH

2012 2011
—B-—F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Merchandise B B 12,795 14,556

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an ZAERSTZ2EESBOMWT -

expense is as follows:
The Group
rEH

2012 2011
T —E——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEGFECZERAE 845,086 524,408
Write down of inventories FEMUR 98 —
845,184 524,408

Annual Report 2011/12 FE#H%  EHE]
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 E#ZRERA T



18 Trade and other receivables

18 BEWEZREAREMEWRKE

The Group The Company
rEE b N

2012 2011 2012 2011

=E2—-F —T——F ZB-—=-F _"T——F

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHET FET FAET

Trade receivables FEUE 578 91,234 71,190 - —
Less: allowance for doubtful — J&f - REEEHE

debts (note 18(b)) (W1 18(b)) (502) 610) — —

90,732 70,580 - —

Other receivables HoAth FE YR IR 6,698 8,241 = —

Deposits and prepayments & RIERIR 25,436 14,266 178 107

32,134 22,507 178 107

122,866 93,087 178 107

Included in the Group’s deposits and prepayments were
rental, utilities and other deposits amounting to approximately
HK$11,681,000 (2011: HK$8,429,000), which are expected
to be recovered after more than one year. All of the other
trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expenses within one year.

Included in the Group’s other receivables were advances
to slimming business partners amounting to approximately
HK$1,050,000 (2011: HK$Nil), net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$13,183,000 (2011:
HK$13,183,000) and advances to staff of approximately
HK$309,000 (2011: HK$268,000).

AR EEz R REARELAES - A
Rk EMiZ£4911,681,0008T(=
T —— 4 :8,429,000/87T)  BHRE
B—FRYE - FTEEMEREZHIEBER
His W ETEER —F R E S ER A
Fk o

FEAREEZ B it YRR & 1 Al 58
X% % B Z 3R 41,050,000
TT(ZE——F: TET)(NKRR KR

% #913,183,000/8 t(= T — — & :
13,183,000 7T )): RMB IR 2z
X IE #9309,000 T(=— T — — F:

268,000 7T) °
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18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis

Ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance
for doubtful debts) as of the end of the reporting period
is as follows:

Current BN EA

Less than 1 month past due wEAALR 1 E A

1 to 2 months past due wmE1 =2 @A

More than 2 months but less than 12 mE2 &
months past due 12 @A

Amounts past due BH SRR

Trade receivables are usually due within 30 to 90 days
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy are set out in note 28(a).

SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt # &R Mzt (/3

ess otherwise indicated) (Bk A FEBASN - HIAETTIIR)

SAU SAN

18 EWEZRENHMEWFIE#)

(a) HERESHT
EWESFBEGIRREREE)RE
WHIR CBRER DT T -

The Group

TEH

2012 2011
—g-=f -T-—%
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
89,553 70,580
527 —
504 —
148 —
1,179 —
90,732 70,580

FEWE 5 FH — R R B HIERT
B0EREH - AEBEEEBRZ
RIS E N L 28(a) ©

S

(EF=g

TONG

Annual Report 2011/12 £EH%
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18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade receivables directly (see note 2(h)(i)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debt
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, are as follows:

At 1 April
Impairment loss recognised (note 6(c))

REA—H

18 EWESFERHEMEWRFIE %)

(b)

BHERZREEBR (AT 6(c)

Reversal of impairment loss (note 5) SBR[ (At 5)
At 31 March R=A=+—H

At 31 March 2012, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately HK$502,000 (2011: HK$610,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to invoices in dispute and
management assessed that the chance of recovery is
remote. Consequently, specific allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$502,000 (2011: HK$610,000) was
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

EWE S RERE

e B 558 2 R E BB T E R &
HIREE - BRIEREBEEMIE %
Rz A MEE - ERBERT
WAEEIEEENEWRE SR IEMH
(RBEIFE2(h)3)) °

T RERE(REER KRS
R 2 BB -

The Group
rEE

2012 2011
—g-=f -T-—%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
610 460
9 150
(117) —
502 610

R-ZTE——F=A=+—H A&
B 2 e 5 58 £ 502,000 % 7T
(ZZ——4% : 610,000 7T ) # 1@
RETAERE - ZIE 5 E - K
REDHEBEFEEEEH mMERE
B R U E 2 AT e AR o Bt
R BE B Bl B 5502,0008 L(Z &
——% : 610,000 7T)EHR - &
SEVERZEEKFTEAMNIER

=
on ©
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18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(c) The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is

as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

Less than 1 month past due

1 to 2 months past due

More than 2 months but less than 12
months past due

I 45 280 H % 30 Rk (B

EER DR 1 E A
w1 = 2@A
w2 =
12 @8 A

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired

relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was

no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate

to a number of independent customers that have a

good track record with the Group. Based on past

experience, management believes that no impairment

allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as

there has not been a significant change in credit quality

and the balances are considered fully recoverable.

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&

g Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& B8 EBASN + HAEITTHIR)

(c)

S

N

pmaRHE A

(EF=g

SAU SAN TONG

18 EWEZRENHMEWFIE#)

A A% A 1| Bk N 48 K (B b 4 AR VS T
WAE 2 B E 538 2 BRER H AT 1A
T

The Group
rEE

2012 2011
—E——F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
89,553 70,580
527 —
504 -
148 —
1,179 —
90,732 70,580

I #8823 BB 2 MK IR TS
BERWEMNPBRCEZIEFE
7

SAHEY ERE 2 U RIA T E
ZERNAEBHERIFEBLEZ
BUEFAR REBELR A
REELGRUEBEAES - BER
T8 R Al 28Uk E - MEIEEE
EBELSREBRIELRERE -
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19 Amounts due from/to related parties

Amounts due from non-controlling
interests

Amounts due from related companies
(note)

Amounts due to non-controlling interests

FE W I B i 25
B

e B REE
(K1)

NR)FRIE

FE A5 FEHE R 2 IR

Note: Certain directors of subsidiaries have significant influence over

these related companies.

The amounts due from or to related parties are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

20 Bank loans

The bank loans are repayable within one year, and secured

by guarantees from a director and properties owned by

certain staff members of the Group.

19 Y EAREALFRE

20

The Group
rEE

2012 2011
—=E——fF —T——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
6,291 6,249
3,512 3,275
9,803 9,524
6,463 6,507

Wit MBRARZETEREZERHERRE
BERTEN -

FEMCH B B A TR AR - %8
REREREE -

RITENK

BITERAR—FREER  YhE—EF

RAREEETEIMERZWEELRR -
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O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& Bf 3% R = Mi & (AS

ong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 A 7EBASN » ¥HIAETLIIR)

5z
21 Trade and other payables 21 EFNESRERHEMMESRKIE
The Group The Company
rEE AKAT
2012 2011 2012 2011

—B——-F —"ZT——F ==B-—-F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET FET FAET
Trade creditors FERTE SRR 33,628 30,568 - —
Other payables and accrued — HfbfEN A K
charges fEETE B 26,305 19,279 1,159 1,049
59,933 49,847 1,159 1,049
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled Fr B FET & 5 3/ I8 K H Ath FE 7 5RIB T HA 18
within one year or are repayable on demand. R—FRNEERELERKEE -
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with ST AR B 5 5RIE & E MR FRIE R FER
the following ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting BSEF ERERBRZEEITW
period: N
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Due within 1 month or on demand 1 E A AR E sk EH 33,628 30,568
22 Amount due to a director 22 BEN—RBEENIE
The amount due to a director, Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, ﬁﬁ%%?ﬁfﬂﬂﬁ@izlﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 3
is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. NBRERKERER -

Annual Report 2011/12 FEH%E el
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23 Convertible notes

On 5 November 2010 and 14 January 2011, the Company
issued 2% per annum convertible notes of principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 to Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, a director
of the Company, and 2% per annum convertible notes with
aggregate principal amount of HK$20,000,000 to two third
parties, respectively. The maturity dates of these convertible
notes are the second anniversary from the respective dates of
issue of the convertible notes. Interests are payable annually
in arrears.

The holders of the convertible notes have the rights to
convert, on any business day from the respective dates of
issue of the convertible notes until 5 business days before
the maturity dates of the convertible notes, the whole or part
only in an integral multiple of HK$1,000,000 of the principal
amount of the convertible notes into ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.5. If the notes have
not been converted, they will be redeemed by the Company
on the respective maturity dates.

In respect of the convertible notes issued on 14 January
2011, part of the notes with principal amount of
HK$12,000,000 were converted into ordinary shares on 25
January 2011, with the remaining balance converted into
ordinary shares on 25 February 2011. Accordingly, a total of
40,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each was issued on
the conversions.

23 AMREE

RZE—EF+—FREBR=-ZE——F
—ATHMB - NABRDRETEALER
20,000,000 % 7T 2 FF & 2% Al iR R &
F ok TS £ kA& A 20,000,000
BILTZENE2% A MREBRTREE=
7o ZEMBMBRER 2 EEBE DR AT
ARRERECMBEFER - FIBVSFH
KA o

RREEFEAGEBRITERERS S
ZETBRERREEIBAAES
¥BAN RERE05EILH IR I HED
PR 4 % 51,000,0008 T2 B EH
ARBREREARNATE B - WREBERE
R BIRARIERESE 2B H R ER
AR -

FRZT——F—A+mBAFETZARR
ZEEMmME - BHA L5 A12,000,000#
TZEBEER-_E——F—A-+EHABK
BmAELBER  BBARZZTE——F=A
TTRBRBALER - At - RELRE
#1714 $£ 40,000,000 B F % 0.01 BT 2
LA o
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g5 =
SAU SAN TONG
23 Convertible notes (Continued) 23 ABRBREE#E)
The convertible notes issued have been split as to the liability BT AR EEE D ABERERMED
and equity components, as follows: - FEBWT

The Group and the Company

AEBREDF
2012 2011
—ZE—=fF —T——f
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
At 1 April R A—H 19,142 —
Principal amount of convertible notes BT BRER 2
issued PG L] — 40,000
Issue costs BATRR = (500)
Equity component s & 1D = (2,675)
19,142 36,825
Effective interest expense BERF &R 1,026 583
Conversion into ordinary shares HighETEik - (18,266)
Liability component at 31 March —A=+—HzaEHBnm 20,168 19,142
The equity component is presented as convertible notes R HOIEEFZAZ TBRREZEHE - 8
reserve within equity. The effective interest rate of the liability EEDZERNEAEEES41%

component is 5.41% per annum.

Annual Report 2011/12 £EH% 1
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24 Income tax in the consolidated statement 24 HZEHMBRARAZEFAEBH
of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) RAEEVERRRAZEHNHRE
financial position represents: 1
The Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
PRC Enterprise Income Tax P EMSH
— Provision for the year (note 7(a)) — FRBENE (@) 6,396 2,068
— Provisional tax paid — BRTEEH (3,720) (1,530)
2,676 538

EEP) Annual Report 2011/12 FE#H &
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24

Income tax in the consolidated statement

HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

ng dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f& 34 AN »

BB TSR

of financial position (Continuead)

(b) Deferred tax - the Group

(i) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (i)

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the

S

mERmE ()

S

(EZ=acxN

SAU SAN

24 GEMBRARANZFAER @)

(b) EEHE — &NEH

movements during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from:

At 1 April 2010

Exchange adjustments

Charged to profit or loss
(note 7(a))

At 31 March 2011

At 1 April 2011
Exchange adjustments
Charged to profit or loss

(note 7(a))

At 31 March 2012

Depreciation

BEHERZELHIRARE

REFAMBRRKIER ZELEHRIA
BEBOERERZESHIT

in excess of
the related Other
depreciation  temporary
allowances differences
EBLEE Hith Total
BITERE HEEER aH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
UT&EMESL ZIEERE :
RZE—ZEFWONA—HAH 261 3,119 3,380
PE 5 A% 8 158 166
ERERREN]5S
(K13 7(a)) (162) 601 439
RZE——F=A=+—H 107 3,878 3,985
R-ZE——FWNA—H 107 3,878 3,985
b H SR 3 154 157
SRk ]33
(Bt 7(a)) (59) 1,510 1,451
RZE——F=A=+—H 51 5,542 5,593
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24

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(i)

(c)

Deferred tax — the Group (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 March 2012, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities relating to temporary differences
of approximately HK$6,849,000 (2011: HK$9,649,000).

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

At 31 March 2012, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of approximately HK$122,367,000 (2011:
HK$161,893,000) and deductible temporary differences
of approximately HK$2,834,000 (2011: HK$1,359,000)
as it is not probable that future taxable profits, against
which the assets can be utilised, will be available
in relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Of the total
tax losses, approximately HK$19,930,000 (2011:
HK$32,042,000) will expire within 5 years and the
remaining tax losses of approximately HK$102,437,000
(2011: HK$129,851,000) have no expiry date under the
current tax legislation.

Deferred tax— the Company
No deferred tax liabilities have been provided for in

these consolidated financial statements as the Company
does not have any significant temporary differences.

(b)

(i

(i)

(c)

24 EERBRAZHBH 2

EEBE - AKE(E)

AERELCHIRBE

RZE—Z—F=ZA=+—H " &&
I 48 B B F = % 496,849,000 %8
(= F ——%F 9,649,000 7T )
HRELEHEEE -

RERELEHBEE

RZZE——F=ZA=+—H @R
EHBENRBRZERREETX
AREERKRERMBAAZBHAEE
E WASETEMRAHES
18 49122,367,00078 jt( = & — —
& : 161,893,000 JT ) & 7] 1 i
B = %8 #92,834,0008 T(Z &
— — £ :1,359,00078 7T ) ¥ R &
EHBBEE - HEBELES
#719,930,0008 L( =T — — & :
32,042,000 % 7T ) 7 5 F A fE i -
&k T L IB A 1849 102,437,000 7
(= T — — % : 129,851,000/
TORBRITROEL EER B -

EEHIT — AT
HRARRLEEMERERE

B BMUERNGEMBEWET D
EETIA A B
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25 Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the
“Ordinance”). The scheme is administered by an independent
trustee.

Under the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of the Group
and the eligible employees make monthly mandatory
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory contributions by each
party are subject to a maximum of HK$1,000 per month.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

At 31 March 2012, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
provident fund. At 31 March 2012, the Group’s contributions
to the provident funds and the accrued interest thereon
exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by the
relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group and
the PRC employees are required to make contributions based
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the relevant
government authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

25 REMR

S

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #x& Bf 7% R R MY &k m

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k2B L85 - HABITTIIR)

S

g5

SAU SAN TONG

RIREHE

AEBERBEEERIERTESAEED B
REBEBRBERIGE (GG ) FDEAE 5k
BRzZEERIBHIMEATESE([8E
TFFE) - A HBUZEATE -

RipRESHE  AEEETHB AR KL
BEREBRZBHIMERTES TSGR
THAEZBEBBALZS% M EIE
HER - FHTZREEHRRERBE A
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26 Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 4 November 2003. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and any
suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company and/
or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants at
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board as its absolute discretion, save that
no option may be exercised more than five years after it has
been granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option plans of the Company at any time shall not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of the number
of shares in issue as at the date of grant, are subject to
the Company issuing a circular and the approval from the
Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.
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26

Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme (which
shall be payable upon exercise of the option) shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (i)
the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
during the year are as follows:

Options granted to Directors:
— on 10 September 2004
— on 2 March 2011

Options granted to employees:
— on 20 May 2005
— on 6 September 2005
— on 2 March 2011

Options granted to BrTHER
suppliers/consultants: /B BB AR

— on 22 February 2012

Total share options fE R i 1B B

RYEEZERE
- R-ZEZEWFEHA+A
—RZE——F=A=H

BT EE ZIEBRKE -
- RZETERFRA=-1H
- RZZETRFHLAKA
- R—ZT——F=ZA=H

— R=ZT—=—F-A=+=H

S

N
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BB IR D Z S ERB AR -
HRBIRM 2T E(RETEBRER
BNEHEFSERRE  HXERT
BER()BEOHREHBER(LAREER)
FERERZ P B R R AR IERMTE ¢ (i) X
IR BRI L B HAT BE S R AR A
BmEMBZFHRTE K (i) ROmE
BEARSERE) -

(@) RFRFEZERHGRRE G

I

Contractual
Number of life of options
instruments BREZ
TEAZE EHES
646,248 9.2 years F
2,000,000 5.0 years F

2,646,248
51,700 5.0 years %
833,014 5.0 years
11,610,000 5.0 years F

12,494,714
5,880,000 5.0 years F

21,020,962
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26 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options are as follows:

Outstanding at the REHARITHE
beginning of the year

Expired during the year ~ RERNJEM

Cancelled during the REANTEH
year

Granted during the year RFERFH

Outstanding at the end R EL& I ARITE
of the year

Exercisable at the end of RELAI{T{E
the year

The options outstanding at 31 March 2012 had an
exercise price in the range of HK$0.4970 to HK$7.9226
(2011: HK$0.6600 to HK$7.9226) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 4.14 years (2011:

4.82 years).

26 EREEROIIRZ 2

(b) BB MINEFIOITEELW

g
2012 2011
—E—_F —T—%F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
IS T B I g
1TEE 4= 188 #H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0.9892 14,256,248 7.7252 1,530,962
N/A - 7.5810 (884,714)
0.6600 (840,000) N/A —
0.4970 5,880,000 0.6600 13,610,000
0.8536 19,296,248 0.9892 14,256,248
0.8536 19,296,248 0.9892 14,256,248
R-E——F=ZA=+—BHKRTEER
BEZTEEN T 0.49708 T E 7.9226 78

TT(ZZ —— % :0.6600/ 7T £7.9226
BIT)  MEFHRBEOFHREB4145F
TE——4F 1 482%F) ¢
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26 Equity-settled share-based transactions 26 BnFEEROINRS 2

(Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) HBEREAFERME
The fair value of services received in return for share RERH2EBRECWBRERE A
options granted is measured by reference to the fair FED2ERRXEEREZ AFE
value of share options granted. The estimate of the TE e IREBEREZ A TEME
fair value of the share options granted is measured REHENELGHT - BREZA
based on a Black Scholes model. The contractual life HFAZERN 28 ASE - 25
of the share option is used as an input into this model. BREREHRETEZTERE -

Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Black Scholes model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions: RS N T E MR
Date of grant 2\ B
10 September 20 May 6 September 2 March 22 February
2004 2005 2005 2011 2012
—ZTEE —TTRE  _TTRFE -4  CZB-ZF
AATH TA-1E NARAE =AZH =A=+Z=H
Fair value at i pa=p-ipd
measurement date NFE HK$0.142 B HK$0.157 Bt HK$0.127 B HK$0.582 L HK$0.331 Bt
Share price BB HK$0.600 Ex HK$0.510 Bt HK$0.480 &7 HK$0.660 Er HK$0.490 i T
Exercise price T8 HK$0.512 87T HK$0.534 787r HK$0.487 7T HK$0.660 7t HK$0.497 BT
Expected volatility BERKIE
(expressed as (AEEHER
weighted average AEA 2 IIHE
volatility used in TR EHR)
the modeling under
Black Scholes model) 55.79% 58.41% 53.16% 137.59% 124.711%

Option life (expressed  EEMRIESE
as weighted average (AEHHE

life used in the AR 2 I

modeling under THERIT)

Black Scholes model) 92vyears®  50vyears®  50vyears®  50years® 5.0 years
Expected dividends SEE ) 3.85% 3.73% 3.96% Nil & Nil £
Risk-free interest rate SR F &K 2.30% 2.50% 2.50% 1.83% 0.63%

Annual Report 2011/12 FE#H%E  EEYe
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 45 Z#ZBRERAT



26 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.

26 EREEROIIRZ 2

(c)

BREAVERRBRE)

TEETIRIE THAR A58 12 R 08 (LA BB A
ZIETFORIBFHRTE) - BIRE
N FE R B R HOR 08 2 (R TR 2
BIFHAE - BrIREEBERE
FE e IBBARRZEDIREY
N E[BTBREATE -

I & B BB AR A B 2 T IR AT
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

ong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 A 7EBASN » ¥HIAETLIIR)
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S
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REBGARRER D 2 FNEF
REGZHRHNGERSZI K
A o A w8 B 4 a5 A 0 7 )

statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes FRZEHFHSEIWOT :
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company ¥ AY=T |
Capital ~ Share-based  Convertible
Share Share reduction payment notes  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
R RivEE ERMERE ROGTEE TAREERE  EiEE ERlE
Note HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000
s AT AT A1 AT AT A1 AT
At 1 April 2010 R-2-FEMA-A 59,513 90,626 - 3173 - (99,108) 54,204
Changes in equity for 2011; —E--FvRHEH:
Capital reduction ARHlE 2760 (59.215) - 59215 - - - -
Transfer to set off 1N i
accumulated losses upon okt
capital reduction giteR - - (59.215) - - 59,215 -
Issues of shares B7kia 27()i 1785 51,776 - - - - 53,561
Share issue expenses R 27(c)fi - (1,556) - - - - (1,556)
Equity-settled share-based ~ EXEERR
fransactions SURY) - - - 791 - - 7,91
Cancelation of share options 5+ 4 - - - (1,757) - 1,757 -
Issues of convertiole notes ~ BTTARER 2 - - - - 2675 - 2675
Conversion of convertible ~ {ETHRERA
notes into shares ki 2 400 19,226 - - (1,360) - 18,266
Loss and total comprehensive  EMEER
loss for the year 2EFREE - - - - - (66,781) (66,781)
At 31 March 2011 R-E--EZf=t-A 2,483 160,072 - 9,387 1,315 (104,917) 68,290
At 1 April 2011 RZE--EMA-H 2,483 160,072 - 9,337 1,315 (104917) 68,290
Changes in equity for 2012, —B--E2EREH .
Equty-settled share-based ~ EHEERN
fransactions SOEY, - - - 1948 - - 1948
Cancelation of share options 5S4 R - - - (489) - 489 -
Loss and total comprenensive  EMEER
loss for the year SASRGE - - - - - (1,680) (1,680)
At 31 March 2012 RZZ-ZF=B=1-8 2,483 160,072 - 10,796 1,315 (106,108) 68,558
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(b) Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011:

HKS$Nil).

(c) Share capital

(i)  Authorised and issued share capital

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01
(2011: HK$0.01) each

Ordinary shares, issued
and fully paid:

At 1 April
Share consolidation

Capital reduction

Issues of shares
Conversion of convertible
notes into shares

At 31 March

EE

FREEO0.018T

(ZF——%F:
0.01%8T)2
T mAk

BER BRTR
#Rr

RMA—H

Retn & B

BAHIR

BIRH
HATRRER
AR

R=ZA=+—H

27 EX - RERRE®)
(b) RKE
EXFVIPEBENBE_ZS—Z=F
A=+ RLFEZERBE(ZE
——&F : TR -
() BAR
() ZERBEZTRE
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
Number Number
of shares of shares
RBEE fh 8B
Note ’000 HK$’000 000 HK$'000
Wz Fhie FET Fhz FET
27(c)@i) 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
248,294 2,483 297,563 59,513
- - (267,807) —
248,294 2,483 29,756 59,513
27(c)(ii) - - — (569,215)
248,294 2,483 29,756 298
27(c)(iii) - - 178,538 1,785
23 - - 40,000 400
248,294 2,483 248,294 2,483

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company’s residual assets.

ERESEARREDIBEIRZ
BB AHEERFREORARE
RELER—FR -AELBEMAR
AZHBEEZAREMLAL
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

(ii)

Share capital (Continued)

Increase in authorised share capital, share
consolidation and capital reduction

By a special resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting on 18 August 2010, a capital
reorganisation of the Company was undertaken:

— every ten then issued ordinary shares of HK$0.20
each were consolidated into one new ordinary
share of HK$2.00 each. Following the share
consolidation which became effective on 2
November 2010, the Company’s authorised
share capital was HK$100,000,000 divided into
50,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$2.00 each, of
which 29,756,250 ordinary shares were in issued
and fully paid.

— upon the share consolidation becoming effective
on 2 November 2010, the issued share capital of
the Company was reduced from HK$59,513,000
to HK$298,000 by the cancellation of HK$1.99
paid-up capital per each share and the entire
amount of the authorised but unissued share
capital was cancelled.

— following the capital reduction, the Company’s
authorised share capital was increased to
HK$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B # 3Rk MiEE m

sed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 2B L85 BB TTIIR)
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- B+RERSR020E T
ERTEARESH R KR
FR200B T2 EBR-
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ZHERE - KRRZEER
7K 5100,000,000/8 7T * 25
50,000,000 & & f%2.007% 7T
2 E Bk - H $29,756,250
REBIRABEFHITRERE -

- BHAEHR-_ZTE—ZTFE+—A
ZHERE - ARRIZEET
BAZBTHETR1.99E T
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

(iif)

(d)

(i)

Share capital (Continued)

Issues of shares

On 3 December 2010, the Company issued
178,537,500 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each pursuant
to the rights issue approved on 18 August 2010 at a
subscription price of HK$0.30 per share on the basis
of six rights shares for every one share held by the
qualifying shareholders on 11 November 2010. The net
proceeds of HK$52,005,000 were used for expanding
the Group’s existing operations in the PRC and as
general working capital of the Group.

Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium reserve

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands
where a company issues shares at a premium, whether
for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate
amount of the value of the premiums on their shares
shall be transferred to share premium account. The
application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to shareholders
of the Company out of the share premium account
unless immediately following the date on which the
distribution or the dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company will be in a position to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

27 EXR - HERKRE®)

(c)

(iii)

(d)

(M)

B A= (4)

RITR G

NRZZE—ZFE+_A=H K27
BER-_ZE—ZFNA T+ N\BH#HE
ZHBRIZREESROIE T -
NEERBRRERR=_ZT—TF+—A
T—HRERE —RRHOEESIRHE
B& AR 19 2 B 28 17178,537,500 %
BRO.01ABTZEBR - FTISHIE
JF%652,005,0008 7T E A ERE A
EERFPBRCBEAEEBLAERE
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EELEREHN

KRG EEEE
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WAZR e (B sk H At s (B 31T D
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4R&
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Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fk 5 & A% -

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share capital and
share premium of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company through exchange of shares under a group
reorganisation scheme on 4 November 2003. Further
details are set out in the Company’s prospectus dated
10 November 20083.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with accounting policy set out in
note 2(s).

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to the eligible participants of
the Share Option Scheme recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(o)(ii).
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(d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d)

(v)

(vi)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Convertible notes reserve

The convertible notes reserve represents the amount
allocated to the unexercised equity component of the
convertible notes issued by the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible notes in note 2(k).

PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the
PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the Group, which
is a sino-foreign joint-venture enterprise, is required to
allocate at least 10% of its after-tax profit but before
dividend distribution to the general reserve until the
reserve has reached 50% of their registered capital.
The general reserve can only be used, upon approval
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses
or increase capital. The appropriation for the year
amounted to HK$924,000 (2011: HK$960,000).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be used
to increase capital upon approval by the relevant
authority. Appropriation to enterprise expansion fund is
at the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. There was no appropriation during the year
(2011: HKS$NIl).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be used
for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees.
Appropriation to the staff welfare and bonus fund is
at the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. For Hong Kong reporting purposes, this
appropriation is charged to profit or loss and included in
other payables and accrued charges in the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k2B L85 - HABITTIIR)

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(e)

(®)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2012, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$53,964,000 (2011:
HK$55,155,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose
the Group defines adjusted net debt as total debt (which
includes bank loans, trade payables, other payables
and accrued charges, amounts due to jointly controlled
entities, amounts due to related parties and convertible
notes) less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity and amount due to
a director.

During 2012, the Group’s strategy was to maintain
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at below 10%. In
order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 27

(f)

Capital management (Continued)

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 March 2012

and 2011 was as follows:

Current liabilities:

Bank loans

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges

Amounts due to jointly controlled
entities

Amounts due to related parties

Convertible notes

Non-current liability:
Convertible notes

Total debt

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Adjusted net debt

Total equity
Amount due to a director

Adjusted capital

Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio

RBAEE :

RITER

e 8 5 5KIA

Hib AR N R B
e SRR I E A2
IR

e BEE A 5008
AR

FRBEME
AR E

ERAE

B REe MRS EEY

HARBKFE

RSB
e —REEFHIA

ERBER

ERARERFRENERL

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

BEX - RERRE®)

"

x

BAXAEE(E)

RZE—ZFRZ=ZFE——F=A
ST -RAZRHAEEBEFEHER
b

The Group
rEE

2012 2011
—g-=% -~z %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
14,760 8,311
33,628 30,568
26,305 19,279
3,590 2,996
6,463 6,507
20,168 —
104,914 67,661
— 19,142
104,914 86,803
(110,028) (76,386)
(5,114) 10,417
142,370 111,406
273 478
142,643 111,884
N/A RiE A 9%

ARABRETAKBRARMEBRE
SPONRIEINZ BRI ©
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties
and cash and cash equivalents. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In respect of trade receivables, management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are usually due
within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
As such, management considers the aggregate risks
arising from the possibility of credit losses are limited
and to be acceptable.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit risk
but to a lesser extent. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group had a certain concentration of credit risk as
25% (2011: 14%) and 41% (2011: 32%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively. Management does
not expect any significant losses from trade debtors that
have not been provided for other than impairment loss
on bad and doubtful debt as set out in note 18(b).

28 TRIAREERQFE

AEBZERXBBIEELEE  RYPE
T~ MERINERE o ANEE 2 R AR
BRAEERNEEZSERARZ € RER
BIEBOR R EPIFAINT -

(a)

FERBEESER

AEEZEERRIEREBKE
55K A o B FE N EROR - R YRR
ALTHRBEUARBRE KRR FEY -
HEERBZESARERAZER
BENREWBIMRARAZREE

AEKEZHREAMS EEERE
FEERR IRHEEREEAR
EEE - @HMARRKBEET S
B EERZEPETENEER
e ZEFEETREFZBES
N BMRITNRED » X E
BEFPBEEMUANERFEEM
ERBEREEHZER - BRES
R — RN EFEAHEFTI0EWD
BREE - —Rms  AEELE
AEFRGEMR - At - EEE
RREEFEREMELEZARA
AR - HAlLAER -

AEBZEERBREEXIEEP
ZEASHTE RELEMT
ZIERBRERRR L EERR
MEFE HRER/) - RERBE
K ARERE S RIELEFR 25%
ZE——F 14%) MR (ZF
——%F : 32%) D IR A KB &
ABERAREF WMAKEESR
TEERBEFRIER - BRHME18(b)
ez RERRERBEIN  EBE
WATERRBEENE ZERE
AR EXREIE -
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

The Group’s other receivables at 31 March 2012
comprise mainly advances to business partners,
advances to staff and trade deposits amounting to
approximately HK$5,285,000 (2011: HK$6,211,000).
Should the counter parties default in settling the
payments and/or providing services, the Group may
suffer financial losses. The Directors consider that these
amounts are fully recoverable.

In respect of the amounts due from related parties at 31
March 2012 amounting to approximately HK$9,803,000
(2011: HK$9,524,000), the Group may suffer financial
losses if the related parties default in settling the
payments. However, the Directors consider that these
amounts are fully recoverable.

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as the
majority of counterparties are financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies and stated-controlled financial institutions with
good reputations.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in note 18.

28 SRIEAKREERAFEE)

(a)

FERBEERRR(E)

RZEBE——F=ZA=+—8" K&
E 2 E th fEUGRIE + ZE B iE M K
BHBANZRIE  MEBIRFZXK
EHRESES A $£5,285,000% 7T
—ZT——4F:6,211,00087T) °
MR SEFH R E A RE R,
REERERY - MIAKBEAIERT
MEEL EERAZENEAR
k(@ o

BPR-_TE—=—F=ZA=+—AH2
JE LT B8 38 A = SR IE 499,803,000 7
(= Z — — 4% : 9,524,000/ 7T )
mE - W EREA TR AR
B AIAEERGESXPBIEL -
A BEERAZERIEN2HK
@ °

AEBEBRBORERIRESEFED
BEBRER LT B EEE - H
RRENZZEFHh REBRKREER
ARRBETREENFR T B
BIARRER o 2 B2 5 81 15
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s Board when
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities which
are based on the contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments, computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to pay:

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&

BB TSR

S

N

pmaRHE A

(EF=g

SAU SAN TONG

28 sEiEREERAFEE)

(b)

RBEEERE

AEEBETENEEEBRAEER
GrHeER  BRASBHREN
BRERFEEFRARNERREH
2 HEEBEBE THREREKT
RAKANRESSHE - NEE
ZHEREHERRITLEHRD
BaF R UEREEFEHRS
EEMEANTESREBAERE
BE MENEEHEERBRSHE

THRAMTNEBRAAFEHEE
RERARZHBTEOREE - T)
ReEtRERReRE(BERAS
AR ES(WEB) R EMARZ
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(i)  The Group

Bank loans

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued
charges

Amount due to a director

Amounts due to jointly
controlled entities

Amounts due to related parties

Convertible notes

BER
EREARE
EfpEAFER
&R
Efi-%8%57R
R AR
EEE
EREZALIR
TARER

28 SRIEAKREERAFEE)

(b) REBEERREE)
() FEH
2012 2011
%-ZF Ef
More
than
Total Within Total Within 1 year
contractual 1 year contractual 1 year but less
undiscounted oron undiscounted oron than
Carrying  cash flow demand Camying  cash flow demand 2 years
amount  KEBEEE 1 EAS amount  REEEE  1ERE 1ENME
BREE REAHEE EZX FHE RERNEE EER  E2%R
HK$:000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr Fér AT Az TET AT
14,760 (14,760) (14,760) 8,311 (8,311) (8,311) -
33,628 (33,628) (33,628) 30,568 (30,568) (30,568) -
26,305 (26,305) (26,305) 19,279 (19,279) (19,279) -
213 (213) (273) 478 (478) (478) -
3,590 (3,590) (3,590) 2,996 (2,996) (2,996) -
6,463 (6,463) (6,463) 6,507 (6,507) (6,507) -
20,168 (20,800) (20,800) 19,142 (20,800) (400) (20,400)
105,187 (105819)  (105,819) 87,281 (88,939) (68,539) (20,400)
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28 Financial risk management and fair values 28 sREREERRANFE®)

(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELEKE)
(i) The Company (i) FERAA
2012 2011
%-Zf Ef
More
than
Total Within Total Within 1 year
contractual 1 year contractual 1 year but less
undiscounted oron undiscounted oron than
Carrying  cash flow demand Carrying  cash flow demand 2 years

amount  KEBEEE 1 FAY amount  REFHRE  1ERE 1FNE
O REcheE EZX BEE RERNEE EEX  E2%Rm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FET FAT AT

Other payables and accrued B ERZIER

charges EirBE 1,159 (1,159) (1,159) 1,049 (1,049) (1,049) -
Amount due to a director E-4EE10E - - - 102 (102) (102) -
Amounts due to subsidiaries ~ ERHBAFIZE 1,797 (1,797) (1,797) 2,087 (2,087) (2,087) -
Convertible notes TaREE 20,168 (20,800)  (20,800) 19,142 (20,800) (400) 20,400

8124 (283756) (28756 22350 (403 (3638 (20,400

(c) Interest rate risk (c) HIZEER:

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from REBZMERBEEEELEBRTT
bank deposits, bank loans and convertible notes. Gk BITERETBRBRER - T
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to 1%%?%%J7$E@7¥< RenRs
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate *UZ‘SJ—L B R ANFEMNERR - NE
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial jﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé\ﬁﬁﬁil,ﬁ\%ﬁqﬂﬂ%
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk. %o NEBEEEEBER X
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by ,ﬁé%&ﬁé‘?x(oo

management is set out in (i) below.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values 28
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)  Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s net deposits/(borrowings) (being bank deposits

less interest-bearing financial liabilities) at the end of the
reporting period.

SREREERAFEZ)

(c) FEmb(E)
() FEHEE
TRALAEER2HBRTR

(fE &) FR(ANRITFFORM B 2R
BE)ZMERES -

The Group
TEHE
2012 2011
—B-=fF T
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BERAE BEAI=
% HK$°000 % HK$’000
FET FET
Variable rate deposits: ER-RES
Bank deposits and cash  $R1TER N R1T
at bank Re 0.36% 67,687 0.40% 27,374
Fixed rate borrowings:  EBEE
Bank loans RITE 7.60% (14,760) 5.88% (8,311)
Convertible notes Al IRRR I 5.41% (20,168) 5.41% (19,142)
Total net deposits/ B/ (BE)F
(borrowings) mEE 32,759 (79)
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(c)

(ii)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2012,
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest

it is estimated that a general

rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s profit after tax and
decrease/increase the Group’s accumulated losses by
approximately HK$508,000 (2011:
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses by

decrease/increase

approximately HK$17,000). Other components of equity
would not be affected (2011: HK$Nil) by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-
derivative financial instruments in existence at that date.
The 100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next
annual reporting date. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2011.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk
as most sales, income, purchases and expenses are
denominated in the functional currency of the operations

to which they relate.
Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not

materially different from their fair values at 31 March
2012 and 2011.
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(d)

(e)

BORNEBZBRBEEN R RETE
B 4 18 0 49508,000% o=
T——F @ ENAREE 2R
iz EBE R R EE 17,0007
TT) o HiEm Mg L K

TECCT——F THET) -

FRGRESTHBREFNEEHE
REFRARFAERE EANEZA
FHEZFMTESsRIAZFNERR
AEBEMET - 100EEB A KT
EEEHT —FE2HAMAMAF
R A BEH T H T ——
F IR R LEREIT T
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(®)

(i)

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments.

Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information
can be made.

29 Commitments

(@)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2012 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements are
as follows:

Authorised and contracted for ERERETL

— capital injection into a jointly
controlled entity

— capital injection into a subsidiary

— acquisition of property, plant and

equipment

EABR

i

28 SRIEAKREERAFEE)

®

(M)

DFELH

XSS T AR FERE
B2 EEBTERRR -

HBER

EELMBRRZAFEDZ2ER
MRS 2 A ¥R HWEZ &R (108E
BISEMEMERE  HBEREM
it TABKERAEBREREBR
TRz EBREAN X BERAE
EERIBR T RUEEZ T = 1E
hEE B (InBE $ A BE B BHE AT S
i) e

29 EIE

(a)

— [T AREEEE

— A—FHNERFIEARR
— KREYE - HER

R-_E——F=A=+—HEFEM
KRG E T RERIEE 2 B R RE
wmr o

The Group
rEE

2012 2011
—g-=% -~z %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
6,000 6,000
— 4,732
856 616
6,856 11,348
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sed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx 2B L85 BB TTIIR)

BE5=
SAU SAN TONG
29 Commitments (Continued) 29 #EE @)

(b) At 31 March 2012, the total future minimum lease b) RZE—=—F=A=+—80 77
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are B o EHE v BERERSE
payable as follows: T

The Group
A EE
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
Properties Properties
and and
display display
locations locations
Y%Kk  Equipment Y%K Equipment
RRUE RE BRGLE B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET T TET
Within 1 year 1FR 18,526 1 20,889 58
After 1 year but within 5 1 1818
years 5F R 30,803 = 37,692 —
After 5 years 5 F1& 9,756 - 5,093 —
59,085 1 63,674 58
The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties, REBAKEHEBENEFYME -
display locations and items of equipment under BRUBERZEBEE Z&EFEA -
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial E—ROLAH—ZTE OIRE
period of one to ten years, with an option to renew the MERAEGREESHE - e
lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments BES—E2FEIEN - ARERTIS
are usually increased every one to four years to reflect B - HMEHESEXIRES -
market rental. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.
30 Contingent liabilities 30 RAREE

At 31 March 2012 and 2011, the Group and the Company RNRZBE——&ER-_FE——F=RA=+—

had no material contingent liabilities. H: REEBERAAGHBEENKREE
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31 Material related party transactions and
balances

(@) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
Directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits

Contributions to defined contribution FEHEFERIK
retirement plan FrEIHE R
Share-based payments B& 9 5 5%

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see note
6(b)).

(b) Other related party transactions

In addition to the financing arrangements as mentioned

in notes 20 and 23, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions during the year:

[ — & IR A aR
HEEm

Sales of goods to a non-controlling
interest

o RR R HAMER

31 EXRBEAETXRERGEE

(@) FEEBAEM:E
AEFEFEERE AB 2 (B EH
H8FTEBEENFARAEE ZR
BHEHAORMBBEENTFTETERS
FREEZFEB)WT

2012 2011
—2—=F —F %
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T
6,614 5,035

60 64

- 2,910

6,674 8,009

FEBE ATE TARA (R
B(b)) °
(b) HMBEEALRS

B B SE20 R 23 P it 2 Bk & & #F
S REBERFRNEETATERXN

BAEALRS
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
8,696 3,676

Annual Report 2011/12 FEH%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 E#ZRER AT



31 Material related party transactions and
balances (Continued)

(b) Other related party transactions (Continued)

Sales of goods to a non-controlling interest were made
at similar terms as the Group grants to other customers.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
statements of financial position and in notes 15, 16, 19
and 22.

32 Accounting estimates and judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating
results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

(a) Depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charge for the property, plant and
equipment, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

S
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32 EEHAETRHE
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32 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b)

Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, investments
in subsidiaries, interests in jointly controlled entities and
goodwill, recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use.
It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value less costs
to sell because quoted market prices for these assets
may not be readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level of
turnover and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as turnover and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the
directors when assessing the credit worthiness and past
collection history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in
future years.

32 it RHE (2

(b)

AL

ERAIREERE TR  HERK
B NHERARZERE RARE
HERZEBERBEFELZRERS
B AETEEAWREEE [
Y|l & 58 743 X B R 88 & X AR B {8
AEEMEZRSE - ARZEE
EZTISHmERLAERERE - 8
REAERMGES A FERBEERAE
BEEREER  EEEL AN
Ren8MRAEHERE  AHEX
BKFREERASEERBFH
EARHME - AREER YA R
RBZEMBEARESHEAED
B BERERAENMIIFBRR
EHAE REEEBREERAE
TR EHTEA -

REFREEBDRIBESTE R
A B e 20 A7 Ko T Y[ 14 B £ 1 1 R
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32 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future profit will be
available against which the unused tax credit can be
utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience
and judgement. Based on this review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.
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32 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(e) Share-based payments

The estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted to employees and other eligible participants
measured by professional valuers and the directors’
estimate based on the Black Scholes model with
modification to reflect the impact of vesting periods and
exercise patterns on the option value. The accuracy of
the above estimations could affect the amount of share-
based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss.

33 Events after the reporting period

Under the Company’s Share Option Scheme (see note 26),
the Company granted a total of 24,829,375 share options to
certain employees of the Group on 28 May 2012. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.475 per share
for 5 years from the date of grant. The grants were subject to
the acceptance of the grantees.
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new 34 BE=-E——H=H=+—H
standards and interpretations issued but IEEECEMERKRERZE
not yet effective for the year ended 31 R EARBREARESE
March 2012 28
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial BERGEMBHR&RTIZEBEY - 588F
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of MAgEERZEEEE T ——F=A4
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are Z+—HLEFEERERERRGE TS
not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2012 and MR ARERNZAERT A ~ TR REE -
which have not been adopted in the consolidated financial FBRS - LTRAREASEEER R
statements. Of these developments, the following relate to SAUKHREREE L EIE ¢

matters that may be relevant to the Group’s operations and
the consolidated financial statements:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

B3 EHER 2%
MmzEABEN
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of
financial assets 1 July 2011
BEEMBMELEAE7THR(EER) @RIE : #E — cREEEER —FE——F+tH—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets 1 January 2012
BEREGFTERFE 125 (IBFIA) - A8 — EERIE - WREIEEEE —F—=—%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — Presentation of
items of other comprehensive income 1 July 2012
ARG ERFE1RUBEIR) F BBHRE 27 — Hib2EWRIEE 2275 —E—-F+A—H
Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2014
BEASHEREIRFREFR) HifeREERSRAE —E-mWF—H—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 cycle 1 January 2013
BRVBRELEN —TENFE S ——FREBCFEIGHE —F—=%—H—H

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
BEYBMELENFE 105 - BREVBHRE

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements
EBMIEHRELERE 1157 - KETHE

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
EBUEHRELERFE 1257 HEREMEE 2R

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement
BBV HRELERE 135 - R FEFE

1 January 2013
—F—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E-—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H
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34 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2012 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BENBRELENF IR EBMITA

HKAS 19 (2011), Employee benefits
EAGHERFE19R(ZZE——5F)  BERET

HKAS 27 (2011), Separate financial statements
BREGERF 27 (T ——F) - B B®E

HKAS 28 (2011), Investments in associates and joint ventures

EREHEAF 28R (—FT——F) RBERARARGELEZRE

The Directors have confirmed that the Group is in the
process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments, new standards and new interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that their adoption is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

34 BE-_F——-—F=HA=1+—H
ItFEECEMERKRERZE
AR FEAIRREURELE
k%1€ )

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BT5 B z%E
G2 E AN

1 January 2015
—E-hF—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=F—H—H

1 January 2013
—=%—A—H

1 January 2013
F—=%—HA—H
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